Lewisville Town Council
Regular Meeting Agenda
April 13, 2023 - 7:00 PM
Lewisville Town Hall 1% Floor Council Chambers
6510 Shallowford Road

Call to Order:

A. Roll Call

B. Invocation — Council Member David Smitherman

C. Pledge of Allegiance — Council Member Fred Franklin
D. Adoption of Agenda

Consent Agenda

A. Resolution 2023-018 — Financial statements for the eight months ended February 28, 2023 —
(Attachment #1)

B. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes — February 9, 2023 (Attachment #2)

C. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes — March 2, 2023 (Attachment #3)

D. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes — March 9, 2023 (Attachment #4)

Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
A. Recognitions
i. Meghan Flow, Planning Board (Attachment #5)
ii. Jessica Higgins, Planning Board (Attachment #6)
iii. Ryan Walker, Parks & Recreation Board (Attachment #7)
B. Presentations
i. Great Wagon Road — Connie James, NCDOT
ii. Sheriff’s Office
iii. 2023-2024 budget message — Manager Ayers
C. Proclamation
i. Proclamation 2023-001 - Volunteer Appreciation Week — April 16-22, 2023 (Attachment #8)
ii. Proclamation 2023-002 — Historic Preservation Month — May 2023 (Attachment #9)

Public Forum
A. Residents should register with the Town Clerk and limit their comments to three (3) minutes.
B. Written comments are also available.

Appointment(s)
A. Appointment Order 2023-004 — Alex Branower — Lewisville Beautification (Attachment #10)

B. Appointment Order 2023-005 — Alex Branower — Environmental Conservation & Sustainability
(Attachment #11)

Old Business — None

New Business

A. Ordinance 2023-014 — Amending the Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road Roundabout
Capital Project Ordinance - $1,531,485 (Attachment #12)

B. Ordinance 2023-015 — Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 — Transfer $306,297 from General

Fund to Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road Roundabout Capital Projects Fund
(Attachment #13)



10.

C. Resolution 2023-019 — Authorizing auditing services for fiscal year 2022-2023 with Gibson &
Company (Attachment #14)

D. Resolution 2023-020 — Awarding paving contract for street paving — Yadkin Valley Paving Inc. -
$425,064.51 (Attachment #15)

Administrative Reports
A. Upcoming events and closings
i. Lewisville Earth Day (LED) — April 29 at Shallowford Square, 9 AM-2 PM
B. Clerk’s Report
i. CityVision — April 25-27 — Concord
a. CityVision voting delegate
ii. Budget work sessions — April 20, 6 PM; May 1, 6 PM; May 4, 6:30 PM (if needed)
iii. Budget public hearing —May 11, 2023, 7 PM
iv. Boards & Committees Ice Cream Social — May 19, 4:30-6:30 PM, MAWCC

For the Good of the Order

A. Public Comments
i. Residents should limit their comments to three (3) minutes.
ii. Written comment forms are also available.

B. Council Comments

Adjournment



Attachment #1

RESOLUTION 2023-018 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF MONTHLY DISBURSEMENTS

WHEREAS, the Finance Officer has presented the Town Council with the Revenue Statement
Summary and the Encumbrances and Expenditure State Summary of figures for the eight months
ended February 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Officer did not report any unusual expenditures.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Lewisville Town Council accepts the Revenue

Statement Summary and the Encumbrances and Expenditure Statement Summary for the eight
months ended Fehruary 28, 2023 and incorporated herein.

Adopted this the 13t day of April 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



Town of Lewisville
Financial Budget to Actual Report - General Fund
Eight Months Ended February 28, 2023

General Fund
Revenue Year to Percentage
Revenues Budget Date Uncollected Collected

Property Tax Collections $ 2,883,926.00 $ 2,814,368.42 § 69,557.58 97.59%

Sales Tax Revenue 1,057,280.00 616,750.89 440,529.11 58.33%

Other Revenues 1,399,596.00 875,448.78 524,147.22 62.55%

Transfer from ARPA Special Revenue Fund - - - 0.00%

Total 5,340,802.00 $§ 4,306,568.09 $ 1,034,233.91 80.64%

Appropriation from Fund Balance 6,904,778.98
$ 12,245,580.98
Percentage of
Unencumbered | Budget Spent
Expenditures Encumbrances and Unspent or
Departments Budget Year to Date Year to Date Balance Encumbered

Governing Body $ 2,286,623.00 $§ 2,150,563.44 $ 8,372.50 127,687.06 94.42%
Administration 916,853.18 472,762.71 27,853.06 416,237.41 54.60%
Finance 266,245.00 176,611.06 - 89,633.94 66.33%
Debt Service 232,400.00 232,400.00 - - 100.00%
Planning & Zoning 465,975.00 145,297.61 7,712.50 312,964.89 32.84%
Beautification 119,302.00 86,383.41 - 32,918.59 72.41%
Community Palicing 847,146.00 381,924.45 - 465,221.55 45.08%
Public Safety 16,450.00 280.00 - 16,170.00 1.70%
Public Works 508,896.00 284,582.61 42,731.05 181,582.34 64.32%
Streets 250,585.00 19,692.43 9,172.06 221,720.51 11.52%
Powell Bill 405,357.00 21,592.60 20,600.00 363,164.40 10.41%
Storm Water 183,176.00 50,790.63 87,843.20 44,542 17 75.68%
Solid Waste 917,000.00 517,797.58 - 399,202.42 56.47%
Recycling 8,595.00 1,278.11 1,410.00 5,906.89 31.28%
Parks and Recreation 600,977.80 236,278.46 164,742.89 199,956.45 66.73%
Transfers to Capital Projects Funds 3,300,000.00 676,617.00 - 2,623,383.00 20.50%
Transfers to Capital Reserves 920,000.00 920,000.00 - - 100.00%
Total $12,245580.98 § 6,374,852.10 % 370,437.26 5,500,291.62 55.08%

General Fund Balance 7/1/2022

Year-to-Date Increase (Decrease) FY 6/30/2023

General Fund Balance 2/28/2023

$ 7,943,133.05

(2,068,284.01)

$  5,874,849.04




Town of Lewisville

Financial Budget to Actual Report - Willow Run Municipal Service District
Eight Months Ended February 28, 2023

Willow Run Municipal Service District

Revenue Year Percentage
Revenues Budget to Date Uncollected Collected
Revenues $36,610.00 $ 38,52297 § (1,912.97) 105.23%
Total $36,610.00 $ 38,52297 §$ (1,912.97) 105.23%
Appropriation from Fund Balance $ 5
$ 36,610.00
Unencumbered | Percentage of
Expenditures | Encumbrances and Unspent Budget Spent
Budget Year to Date Year to Date Balance or Encumbered
Expenditures $36,610.00 $ 1,397.19 $ = $ 35,212.81 3.82%
Total $36,610.00 $ 1,397.19 § - $ 35,212.81 3.82%

MSD Fund Balance 7/1/2022
Year-to-Date Increase (Decrease) FY 6/30/2023
MSD Fund Balance 2/28/2023

$ 192,445.34
37,125.78
$ 229,571.12




Town of Lewisville

Other Funds

February 28, 2023

Capital Reserve Funds

Balance Transfers In Transfers Out Investment Balance
7/1/2022 Earnings 2/28{2023
SYRRENV/Conetuetion SR | 5 4 e G606 |4 |4 - |5 22.087.83 | $1,073,171.82
Reserve
Slifenialls, Biks Palhs i 132,269.89 25,000.00 - 3,298.41 160,568.30
Greenways Capital Reserve
Municipal Buildings/Land Capital 130,369.89 ) } 2.730.63 133.109.52
Reserve
Pulblic Warks Facliiy Gapital 330,12065 |  495,000.00 . 17,210.35 | 842,331.00
Reserve
Palks & Reciatinn Cepiel : 400,000.00 : 8,239.63 |  408,230.63
Reserve
Total $ 1,643,844.42 | § 920,000.00 | $ - $ 53,575.85( $2,617,420.27
Capital Projects Funds
Balance : Investment Balance
71112022 Revenue Expenditures Transfers In Transfers Out Earnings 2/28/2023
GWR ROW/Construction Capital $ 73506824 % $ \ $ = $ . $ 1546589 (% 751,434.13
Project
JWP Maintenance
Facility/Playground Expansion 20,661.31 - - - 434.18 21,095.49
Capital Project
Gateway Project Capital Project 191,785.19 18,438.21 (23,047.76) 676,617.00 - 4,162.43 867,955.07
Community Center Capital 274,674.25 (2,500.00) - 5 3,357.00 |  275,531.25
Project
Roundabout at Lewisville-Vienna
Road and Robinhood Road 217,065.93 14,308.96 (17,886.20) - - 5,421.96 218,910.65
Capital Project
Total $1,440,154.92 | § 3274717 | § (43,433.96)| § 676,617.00 | § - $ 28,841.46 | $ 2,134,926.59

B

American Rescue Plan Act Special Revenue Fund

American Rescue Plan Act funding received

Transferred to General Fund to reimburse for general government services -
revenue replacement - Fiscal Year 2021-2022

Investment earnings

American Rescue Plan Act Special Revenue Fund - Cash Balance 2/28/2023

§ 4,024,471.50

(1,208,168.14)
58,511.60




Attachment #2

Lewisville Town Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
February 9, 2023 - 7:00 PM
Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers
6510 Shallowford Road

Call to Order:

A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 7:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro
Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler, and Jane
Welch. Also attending were Town Manager James Ayers, Assistant Town Manager/Planning
Director Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Town Clerk Dora Moore and Town Attorney
Elliot Fus. Council Member David Smitherman was absent.

B. Invocation — Retired Pastor Tom Lee, Lewisville United Methodist church

Pledge of Allegiance — Council Member Jane Welch

D. Adoption of Agenda — Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve the agenda as presented. The
motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.

0

Consent Agenda
A. Consent agenda items
i. Resolution 2023-006 — Financial statements for the six months ended December 31, 2022
ii. Approval of Called Meeting Minutes — December 29, 2022
iii. Approval of Closed Session Minutes — December 29, 2022
iv. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes — January 5, 2023
v. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes — January 12, 2023
vi. Revised 2023 budget calendar
B. Council Member Franklin moved to approve the consent agenda items. The motion was seconded

by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-006 is herein incorporated by
reference into the minutes. The revised 2023 budget calendar is herein incorporated into the minutes.)

Presentations, Introductions and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations

i. I'm One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live — Mayor Horn presented the I’'m One
of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live award to Tim Lasley. Mr. Lasley has served
the community for many years at Wilson’s Garage, the boy scouts and Vienna Fire Department.
(A copy of Mr. Lasley’s certificate and the nomination form are herein incorporated into the minutes.)

ii. Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office — Sergeant Stringer shared current call statistics noting Town
officers answered 70% of the calls and the split-shift deputy is working well. Sergeant Stringer
then shared information related to the Flock camera system that is a license tag reader. These
cameras are placed statistically in communities. When a stolen license tag is located, the
Sheriff’s Office is notified. There is no cost to the Town for the Flock cameras that Sergeant
Stringer would like to place at major intersections. Sergeant Stringer further shared the
Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office RTIC (Real Time Intelligence Center) system utilizes fusus. Fusus
serves as an extra tool in fighting crime by allowing the Sheriff’s Office to connect to cameras
in the community including municipal, business, and homeowners. The owner controls how
video is shared with the Sheriff's Office. Currently, 772 cameras are monitored in Forsyth
County. Sergeant Stringer requested the Town consider connecting to the program. He also

encouraged the Council tour RTIC to learn more about RTIC. (Fusus presentation is herein
incorporated into the minutes.)




2023

TYPE OF INCIDENT JAN FEB MAR APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT (]9} NOV DEC TOTAL

‘Total calls for service 872 872

Security Check 570 570

Traffic Arrest / Violation 49 49

Alarm 17 17

Priority Call Response Time 5.2 5.2
2022

TYPE OF INCIDENT JAN FEB Mar April May lune July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total

Total calls for service 700

Security Check 258

Traffic Arrest / Violation 26

Alarm 15

Priority Call Response Time 6.4

B. Introductions
i. Public Works Director — Manager Ayers introduced Jon Hanna as the Town’s Public Works
Director. Mr. Hanna is a graduate of Clemson University where his majors and minors range
from wildlife biology to environmental science and forestry. Prior to owning and operating a
commercial landscape firm, Mr. Hanna worked for the City of Clemson as a horticulturist and
arborist.

Public Forum — No comments.

Appointment(s)

A. Appointment Order 2023-001 — Christi Ritter — Lewisville Beautification Committee — Council
Member Hunt moved to approve Appointment Order 2023-001. The motion was seconded by
Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved unanimously. (Appointment Order 2023-001 is herein incorporated
by reference into the minutes.)

B. Appointment Order 2023-002 — Matthew O’Connor— Public Safety Advisory Committee — Council
Member Franklin moved to approve Appointment Order 2023-002. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously. (Appointment Order 2023-002 is herein incorporated
by reference into the minutes.)

Public Hearing(s)
A. L-103 — Conditional district rezoning request - 7.45 acres off future extension of Great Wagon
Road (PIN 5875-87-6070) from RS-20 to RM-8-C by Luke Dickey; Stimmel Associates, PA
i. Staff presentation
a. Mrs. Tolbert stated 7.45 acres off the Great Wagon Road future extension is being
requested to be rezoned from RS-20 to RM-8-C for townhomes. All property owners
within 500 feet were notified. If rezoning is approved, construction would begin with the
Great Wagon Road construction due to need for access to the Great Wagon Road and
water and sewer service. Due to stormwater and watershed rules, there will be a 100 foot
buffer around the intermittent stream. Mrs. Tolbert provided comparisons of the
Comprehensive Plans from 1997 to 2022 whereby multifamily use for this property has
been identified. On December 14, 2022, the Planning Board unanimously recommended
approval. (Presentation is herein incorporated into the minutes.)
ii. Public hearing
- Susan Frey, 165 Will Austin Court — Mrs. Frey requested the Town to be intentional with
how it grows and feels the proposed rezoning is not for the greater good. Mrs. Frey




referenced several pages in the Comprehensive Plan. (Mrs. Frey’s comments are herein
incorporated into the minutes.)
Dan Frey, 165 Will Austin Court — Mr. Frey feels rezoning the property to strictly residential
use is a missed opportunity. He does not feel apartment or condo residential structures
create a ‘vibrant” atmosphere. Mr. Frey also requested Council to consider prohibiting
construction traffic on the land from Belnette to the proposed building site. (Mr. Frey’s
comments are herein incorporated into the minutes.)
Bob West, 310 Belnette Drive — Mr. West hoped the Council read his email. He feels the
rezoning will devalue his property and is one step closer to becoming like Clemmons. Mr.
West expressed his trust that the Council will make a decision for the residents, not greedy
developers.
Geoff Rieser, 8513 Cabin Grove Drive — Mr. Rieser does not see how the proposal fits with
the Town’s small-town character and encouraged Council not to approve the zoning
change.
Robert Faron, 7768 Seasons Hollow Road — Mr. Faron shared that he moved to Lewisville
six months ago. He feels the rezoning is a step in the wrong direction and the town will
become like Clemmons. Mr. Faron does like the varying roof lines. He feels growth is good
but not all change is for the better.
Maria Stimson, 120 Sunny Acres Drive — Ms. Stimson does not believe construction of the
Great Wagon Road and townhomes is Lewisville.
Glenn Stewart, 260 Belnette Drive — Mr. Stewart declined to speak.
Jon Thomas, 6205 Deforest Court, Pfafftown — Mr. Thomas does not feel the Moravians
envisioned this for Lewisville. He requested citizen property be preserved and stated
surveys do not show that townhomes are requested.
Cathy Herlock, 235 Riverwood Drive — Ms. Herlock declined to speak.
Jeff Herlock, 235 Riverwood Drive — Mr. Herlock declined to speak.
Luke Dickey, Stimmel Associates, 601 N. Trade Street, Suite 200, Winston-Salem — Mr.
Dickey shared that townhomes are a good transition from single family to commercial. All
units will be alley-fed and will front Great Wagon Road.
= Council Member Welch inquired what materials will be used. Mr. Dickey answered
brick and hearty board siding.
= Council Member Franklin stated the pines being removed were considered scruffy
pines. Mr. Dickey concurred stating pines are not typically saved during construction
projects.
=  Council Member Sadler inquired if the Planning Board considered all planning
documents. Mrs. Tolbert stated analysis was done primarily with the 2022
Comprehensive Plan but due to this case being in the downtown area, older
comprehensive plans, Legacy Plan, UDO, the pedestrian plan, and other documents
were reviewed. During the review, no conflicts with the plans were found.
=  Mayor Pro Tem Foster noted the Comprehensive Plan reflects wants of the residents
but residents are saying this is not a fit. Mrs. Tolbert shared the survey results said
residents want to keep the small-town feel with tighter density in downtown and
outer areas more rural. She further shared that the Comprehensive Plan is built on
feedback that is given by the residents.
= Mayor Horn inquired if the townhomes would be rentals. Mr. Dickey answered they
would be owner-occupied.
= Mayor Horn stated all trees provide a buffer and inquired if the intention is to thin or
cut the existing buffer. Mr. Dickey stated the trees around the stream will remain as



well as the ones across the stream at Belnette. Additional trees could be considered
for stormwater management.
=  Milt Rhodes, Stimmel Associates — Mr. Rhodes expressed gratitude for plans that
provide guidance for the downtown. If more trees are needed, it is felt more could
be put in if it works.
=  Mayor Horn shared his appreciation for the attention given to the plan and requested
the developer to be conscious in providing as much screening as possible.
=  Mayor Horn inquired if a market study of the age of those who may be interested in
the townhomes was done. Mr. Rhodes stated that projects in other areas trend more
to those downsizing in their mid-fifties and young adults getting started.
=  Mayor Horn asked Mrs. Tolbert if there were fagade requirements facing the Great
Wagon Road due to being downtown. Mrs. Tolbert said there are requirements as
well as a buffer yard.
=  Mayor Horn noted the comprehensive plan says retail for the downtown area but he
noted a high rate of retail failure. Mayor Horn believes more pedestrian traffic will
increase retail success.
Alexandria Simmons, 769 Lewisville-Vienna Road - Ms. Simmons stated she was speaking
on behalf of herself and her grandfather. They do not want the townhomes. They do not
live here for the shopping. They live here because of their families and good schools. Ms.
Simmons expressed concern about the impact on the schools. She stated shame on the
Planning Board for continuing to try to push what they do not want.
Bob West, 310 Belnette Drive — Mr. West stated staff keeps mentioning a pedestrian-
friendly downtown. Those moving in would have to walk a mile to Lowes Foods so what
will they walk to.

iii. Council discussion

Council Member Franklin stated change happens and it has been happening for a while.
Once the Great Wagon Road became a reality, the potential for multifamily homes has
become more visual. He reiterated that change is going to happen but change can be
controlled. Council Member Franklin expressed his support of the project stating he
would vote in the affirmative.

Mayor Pro Tem Foster stated she served on the Planning Board prior to Council. The
intent is to keep Lewisville the way we want which is easier said than done. Mayor Pro
Tem Foster wrestles with how to let the community know the plan. She feels staff is great
and they do a lot of heavy lifting. Mayor Pro Tem Foster believes 2023 allows the Town
to be more robust in informing the community.

Council Member Welch stated she has been on the Council time-to-time since 1991 and
it has never been the intent to be another Clemmons. With that comes planning and the
desire to have this town grow in a way that people are proud. She stated walls cannot be
built around the Town and unless you own the property around you, it will probably be
developed.

Council Member Hunt stated she had some concerns about the buffer, stormwater pond
and common area. In the future, common areas need to be looked at as developments
are being built. Mayor Horn stated Council could ask the Planning Board to see how we
can integrate more common areas.

Mayor Horn noted Lewisville residents were concerned about trees and the Town had a
tree ordinance. In the last session, legislators removed municipalities’ ability to have a
tree ordinance.




iv.

- Council Member Sadler stated the residents have interpreted the plan based upon their
understanding so he feels they are aware of the plan. He noted there have been
controversial things in the past that are now appreciated. Council Member Sadler
empathized with the residents’ emotions; however, there is going to be change.

Consideration of Ordinance 2023-005 — Council Member Franklin moved to approve

Ordinance 2023-005. The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler and approved

unanimously. Mayor Horn encouraged the residents not to leave thinking Council did not

hear what they said, because Council did. (Ordinance 2023-005 is herein incorporated by reference into
the minutes.)

A recess was taken 8:36 - 8:47 PM.

B. L-105 - Conditional district rezoning request - 1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Road from RS-9-C to RM-

5-C by Ron Davis with Allegro Investment Properties, LLC

Staff presentation

a. Mrs. Tolbert reported 60 twin homes and 2 single-family homes are being proposed for
13.57 acres on Lewisville-Clemmons Road. The property fronts Lewisville-Clemmons Road
near Kaplan Industries. Single-family homes are permitted in the proposed zoning from
RS-9-C to RM-5-C. The site plan is similar to a prior plan of 34 single-family homes
approved for this property. Mrs. Tolbert noted NCDOT is requiring the developer to
construct turn lanes on Lewisville-Clemmons Road. Due to its location, landscaping is not
required. The Planning Board has unanimously recommended approval. (Presentation is
herein incorporated into the minutes.)

Public hearing

- Dan Frey, 165 Will Austin Court — Mr. Frey expressed concern related to vehicular traffic
on Lewisville-Clemmons Road. (Mr. Frey’s comments are herein incorporated into the minutes.)

- Matt Goldwater, 180 Oak Grove Avenue — Mr. Goldwater also expressed concern about
traffic noting traffic has doubled the last twelve years. He stated it looks like a good
project.

- Frank Marx, 900 Loblolly Drive — Mr. Marx stated this will be a lot more homes and traffic
and it appears they will not have a lawn.

- Ron Davis, Allegro Investment Properties, LLC — Mr. Davis informed Council that the
floodplain impacted the original plan of 34 single-family homes; therefore, they are
requesting to construct twin homes. He stated the homes would have 2-car garages with
all brick at equal or greater quality as Fountain Brook. It is projected to be a quiet
neighborhood targeting homeowners 55 and over. Mr. Davis said they have attempted to
speak with neighboring properties and HOAs.

Council discussion

- Mayor Pro Tem Foster thanked the developer for reaching out to adjacent community.

- Mayor Pro Tem Foster inquired how a community determines traffic impact. It was noted
that traffic has increased substantially on Lewisville-Clemmons Road and a widening
project is scheduled to begin in 2025 with rights-of-way beginning in 2028.

Consideration of Ordinance 2023-006 — Council Member Hunt moved to approve Ordinance

2023-006. The motion was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously.
(Ordinance 2023-006 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

7. Old Business — None



8. New Business

A.

Ordinance 2023-007 — Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 - Increase community policing
contract for mid-year salary raises and possible inflationary overages in other items - $60,166 —
Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve Ordinance 2023-007. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Franklin and approved unanimously. (Ordinance 2023-007 is herein incorporated by
reference into the minutes.)

Ordinance 2023-008 — Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 - Increase right-of-way
maintenance in Powell Bill - $20,000 — Council Member Franklin moved to approve Ordinance
2023-008. The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler and approved unanimously.
(Ordinance 2023-008 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

Resolution 2023-007 — Awarding contract for asphalt patch on Tullyries Lane - $10,960 — Council
Member Hunt moved to approve Resolution 2023-007. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Welch and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-007 is herein incorporated by reference into
the minutes.)

Resolution 2023-008— Awarding contract for sidewalk repairs - $13,620 — Council Member Welch
moved to approve Resolution 2023-008. The motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and
approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-008 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)
Ordinance 2023-009 — Amending Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustments charter —
Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve Ordinance 2023-009. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously. (Ordinance 2023-009 is herein incorporated by
reference into the minutes.)

Resolution 2023-009 — Scheduling public hearing for Willow Run Municipal Service District charter
amendment — Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve Resolution 2023-009. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Franklin and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-009 is herein
incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

Consideration of facility fee exemptions

i. Resolution 2023-010 - Winston-Salem Forsyth County Schools — Council Member Sadler moved
to approve Resolution 2023-010 for a one-time, in-kind exemption. The motion was seconded
by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-010 is herein incorporated
by reference into the minutes.)

ii. Resolution 2023-011 - West Forsyth Christian Preschool — Council Member Franklin moved to
approve Resolution 2023-011 for a one-time exemption. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Hunt and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-011 is herein incorporated by reference into
the minutes.)

iii. Resolution 2023-012 - Indo US Cultural Association — Council Member Hunt moved to approve
Resolution 2023-012 for a one-time exemption. The motion was seconded by Council Member
Welch and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-012 is herein incorporated by reference into the
minutes.)

9. Administrative Reports

A.

Clerk’s Report
i. Town & State Dinner — February 22, 5 PM — Raleigh Convention Center

ii. CityVision — April 25-27 — Concord
a. Let Town Clerk know by February 23 if plan to attend



10. For the Good of the Order
A. Public comments
i. Wendy Goldwater, 180 Oak Grove Avenue — Ms. Goldwater shared concerns about traffic
stating the Great Wagon Road traffic will still flow to the highway. She encouraged the Town
to take advantage of traffic planning.
B. Council comments
i. Council Member Franklin inquired if refundable deposits should be required for future in-kind
exemptions.
ii. Mayor Pro Tem Foster reminded staff of her request for a joint Planning Board and Council
meeting.
iii. Mayor Horn thanked staff for their participation in the meeting and being well-informed.

11. Adjournment — Council Member Franklin moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:32 PM. The motion was
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved unanimously.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



Attachment #3

Lewisville Town Council
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2023 - 6:30 PM
Lewisville Town Hall 2" Floor Conference Room
6510 Shallowford Road

1. Callto Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:30 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Ken Sadler, David Smitherman,
and Jane Welch. Also attending were Town Manager James Ayers, Assistant Town
Manager/Planning Director Stacy Tolbert, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Facilities Manager Brian
Moore, and Attorney Elliot Fus. Council Member Melissa Hunt was absent.

Adoption of Agenda — Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve the agenda. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Franklin and approved unanimously.

2. Items Requiring Council Direction

A.

Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office fixed price contract — After reviewing the pros and cons of a fixed
contract, Council consensus was to enter a fixed price contract with the Forsyth County Sheriff’s
Office. This will be reflected in the proposed 2023-2024 budget.

MAWCC discussion — Manager Ayers noted there are three areas of concern with the Mary Alice

Warren Community Center (MAWCC): 1) fee structure, 2) exemptions, and 3) rules/regulations.

i. Fee structure — There is some confusion related to the MAWCC fees due to a significant room
rental rate change for up to 49 ($150) and 50+ ($800). At least thirteen reservations have
been lost due to the rates. Proposed rates were shared with the Council. Brian Moore has
also developed a brochure to help inform renters of potential room setups. The brochure is a
working document. Council consensus was to amend the fee schedule at the March 9
meeting.

ii. Exemptions — Manager Ayers feels there are some unintended consequences with the facility
use exemption policy including the list length, vague language and no specifics on certain
groups. He shared instances where the exemption has been abused by exempt groups and
members of an exempt group. Council agreed some flexibility is needed. Staff will continue
to evaluate the policy and present recommendations to Council at a future date.

iii. Rules/regulations —Manager Ayers shared sections of the ordinance that conflict while noting
some items in the policy should be handled administratively. Staff will continue to evaluate
the policy and present recommendations to Council at a future date.

Nomination —I’'m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live — Mayor Horn shared Susan

Frey’s recommendation for Merrikay Brown to receive the I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a

Great Place to Live award. It was noted that living in Lewisville is not a requirement. Council

consensus was to give this award to Ms. Brown at the March 9 meeting. (Nomination form is herein

incorporated into the minutes.)

Shallowford Foundation program grants — The Shallowford Foundation has identified a $20,000

grant opportunity for programing at MAWCC. The Shallowford Foundation will give an additional

$5,000 to the program. Mayor Horn inquired if Council would be willing to contribute $5,000 as
well. Mr. Moore does not feel the additional programming would conflict with other programs
or rentals. Council consensus was to match $5,000.




Items Requiring Action at Briefing
A. Ordinance 2023-010 — Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 — To send four Council Members to

CityVision 2023 - $4,924 — Council Member Ken Sadler moved to approve Ordinance 2023-010.

Motion was seconded by Council Member David Smitherman and motion passed unanimously.
(Ordinance 2023-010 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

Old Business
A. Resolution 2023-013— Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office Flock camera authorization — Flock cameras

identify stolen license tags or license tags involved with a crime. They are not used as a form of
surveillance. There is no fee to the Town for the Flock cameras; however, the Town must approve
placement upon Town rights-of-way or property. Council Member David Smitherman moved to
approve Resolution 2023-013. Motion was seconded by Council Member Ken Sadler and motion
passed unanimously. (Resolution 2023-013 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

Administrative Reports
A. Manager

Potential budget ordinance revision — Manager Ayers reported that he would like to move
forward with making the Communication Specialist position fulltime. In order to do so, the
budget ordinance will need to be amended to reflect 13 employees versus 12.5. Sufficient
funds are in the budget. Council consensus was to consider the amendment to the budget
ordinance on March 9.

Landscaping contract update — As a matter of transparency, Manager Ayers shared that the
contract with Ecologic has been conveyed to another qualified local firm, Hauser Horticulture.
Ecologic, owned by Jon Hanna, has done no work for the Town since Mr. Hanna began
employment with the Town.

BAC update — Mayor Pro Tem Foster shared a quick update on the progress of the BAC
workgroup. Manager Ayers also addressed three key items: 1) workgroup update, 2) current
boards and committees, and 3) potential new concept. The types of boards and committees
was shared with Council. Mr. Ayers feels it is time to look at committee structures. Examples
of some overlap and collaboration was shared. A potentially new community engagement
committee was discussed. After some discussion, it was hoped a full-time communication
specialist position could help with informing residents.

B. Clerk

CityVision — April 25-27 — Concord

C. Public Works Director

Wildlife control — A five-step process to help eliminate geese at MAWCC was shared with
Council. In some areas, the grass will need to exceed the noxious weeds height limit so a

‘Wildlife Management Area’ sign will be placed in those areas. (A copy of the plan is herein
incorporated into the minutes.)

D. Assistant Town Manager/Planner

Lewisville-Vienna and Yadkinville Roads Roundabout — Council consensus was to request the
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) bring back to the forefront for funding
consideration the Lewisville-Vienna and Yadkinville Roads roundabout.

Gateway project update — The pre-construction meeting last week was well attended.
Mobilization is anticipated around March 6. Staff is developing literature that can be shared
on the website, social media and door-to-door. Once the project begins, it is to be completed
within 300 days.




iii. CMAQ — Shallowford Road sidewalk request update — Funding has been approved for

additional sidewalks along Shallowford Road.
6. Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on March 9, 2023
A. Tentative Agenda
i. Consent Agenda
a.

o Qo0 o

Resolution 2023-014- Financial statements for the seven months ended January 31, 2023
Approval of Council Retreat Minutes — January 27-28, 2023

Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes — February 2, 2023

Approval of Special Called Meeting Minutes — February 21, 2023

Approval of Closed Session Minutes — February 21, 2023

Resolution 2023-015 — Accept Resignation of Genevieve Athens — Lewisville
Beautification Committee

ii. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
a.

Presentations
1. Sheriff’s office

iii. Public Hearings

a.

Willow Run Municipal Service District

1. Staff presentation

2. Public hearing

3. Council discussion

4. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-005

iv. Appointment(s)

a. Boards
1. Parks, Recreation & Cultural Development (Appoint 2)
2. Planning (Appoint 2)
3. Willow Run Municipal Service District
A. Area 2 (Appoint 1)
B. Area5 (Appoint 1)
C. At-large (Appoint 1)
4. Zoning Board of Adjustments
A. Permanent Member (Appoint 3)
B. Alternate Member (Appoint 1)
b. Committees
1. Public Art Advisory (Appoint 5)
2. Public Safety Advisory
A. Appointment Order 2023-003 — Veronica Thomas — Public Safety Advisory
Old Business
a. Mediated settlement agreement update

New Business

a. Resolution 2023-016 — Authorizing Town Manager to sign Lewisville-Vienna/Robinhood
Road Roundabout Supplemental Agreement - $1,225,188
b. Resolution 2023-017 — Authorizing Town Manager to sign Great Wagon Road rights-of-
way and related documents
V. For the Good of the Order

a. Mayor Horn informed Council that the recent NCLM board meeting was incredibly productive. A
salary and recruitment presentation from the meeting has been shared with Council.



b. Mayor Pro Tem Foster inquired about the Voluntary Agriculture District (VAD) status. Mrs. Tolbert

shared discussions are being held with Forsyth County.
c. Mayor Horn shared that Old Nick’s Distillery is having problems obtaining product and they are

trying to find solutions.

vi. Adjournment — Council Member Smitherman moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:43 PM. The motion
was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



Attachment #4

Lewisville Town Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 9, 2023 - 7:00 PM

Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers

6510 Shallowford Road

1. Call to Order:

A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 7:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro
Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler, and Jane
Welch. Also attending were Town Manager James Ayers, Assistant Town Manager/Planning
Director Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Public Works
Director Jon Hanna, and Town Attorney Elliot Fus. Council Member David Smitherman was
absent.

Invocation — Retired Pastor Tom Lee, Lewisville United Methodist Church

Pledge of Allegiance — Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster

D. Adoption of Agenda — Councilmember Welch moved to approve the revised agenda to include
action items taken at the March 2, 2023 agenda briefing. The motion was seconded by Council

Member Franklin and approved unanimously.

0w

2. Consent Agenda
A. Consent agenda items
i. Resolution 2023-014 - Financial statements for the seven months ended January 31, 2023
ii. Approval of Council Retreat Minutes — January 27-28, 2023
iii. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes — February 2, 2023
iv. Approval of Special Called Meeting Minutes — February 21, 2023
v. Approval of Closed Session Minutes — February 21, 2023
vi. Resolution 2023-015 — Accept Resignation of Genevieve Athens — Lewisville Beautification
Committee
B. Council Member Franklin moved to approve the consent agenda items. The motion was seconded

by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously. (Resolutions 2023-014 and 2023-015 are herein
incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

3. Presentations, Introductions and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations
i. I'm One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live — Mayor Horn presented the I’'m One
of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live award to Merrikay Brown. Susan Frey
nominated Ms. Brown for the award due to her work with the Historical Society and the Nissen

House restoration. (A copy of Ms. Brown’s certificate and the nomination form are herein incorporated into
the minutes.)

ii. Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office — Sergeant Stringer shared current call statistics. This week is
Severe Storm Preparedness Week. Sergeant Stringer encouraged residents to develop an
emergency plan for their home. With the warmer weather, residents will be walking and he
encouraged them to wear something reflective when walking at night.




2023

TYPE OF INCIDENT JAN FEB MAR APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT ocT Nov DEC TOTAL

|T0ta| calls for service 872 676 1548

Security Check 570 396 966

Traffic Arrest / Violation 49 47 96

Alarm 17 23 40

Priority Call Response Time 5.2 3.6 8.8
2022

TYPE OF INCIDENT JAN FEB Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total

Total calls for service 700 532

Security Check 258 253

Traffic Arrest / Violation 26 17

Alarm

15 21

4. Public Forum — No comments.

5. Public Hearing(s)
A. Willow Run Municipal Service District proposed charter change — eliminate term limits

i. Staff presentation

a.

Mrs. Moore shared that Council had requested staff to determine how term limits could be
eliminated for Town-appointed boards. In February 2023, Council revised the planning
and zoning charter to eliminate term limits. In order to eliminate term limits in the Willow
Run Municipal Service District charter, a public hearing is required. The proposed charter
change was discussed with the Board chair, posted on the Town’s website, printed in the
Winston-Salem Journal, posted at the three main entrances to the district, and emailed
to the Board. No comments were received prior to the meeting.

ii. Public hearing

David Miller, 1401 Ashford Court — Mr. Miller was unsure if he was in favor or against the
elimination of term limits noting he was not familiar with the Board. No term limits could
create less involvement versus more. He also felt the signage at the entrances was
inadequate. Mr. Miller also shared that he had an incident in 2022 with a tree in the lake
at his home. Mr. Moser tried to assist Mr. Miller but the tree was never completely
removed.

iii. Council discussion

Mayor Horn agreed that the Town would like to see as much participation as possible on
the Board; however, there has been some difficulty in getting residents to serve. One of
the members terming out this year has a great deal of knowledge.

iv. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-010 — Council Member Hunt moved to approve Ordinance

20

23-010. The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler and approved unanimously.

(Ordinance 2023-010 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)




6. Appointment(s)
A. Parks, Recreation & Cultural Development Board — Appoint 1 Full, Appoint 1 Unexpired

Joshua Christi Braden
Parks & Recreation| Cooper Ritter Romer
Foster Full Unexpired
Franklin Full Unexpired
Horn Unexpired Full
Hunt Full Unexpired
Sadler Full Unexpired
Smitherman
welch Unexpired Full
4-Full 2-Full
TOTAL|2-Unexpired |2-Unexpired |2-Unexpired

i. Joshua Cooper was appointed for the full-term on the Parks, Recreation & Cultural
Development Board.

ii. Braden Romer was appointed to fill the unexpired term on the Parks, Recreation & Cultural
Development Board.

B. Planning Board — Appoint 2

Scott . .
] Rob Herald Kirk Rieger

Planning Norman
Foster 1 1
Franklin 1 1
Horn 1 1
Hunt 1 1
Sadler 1 1
Smitherman
Welch 1 1

TOTAL il il 0

i. Rob Herald and Scott Norman were appointed to the Planning Board.



C. Willow Run Municipal Service District Board — Area 2 — Appoint 1

Willow Run MSD

Area 2

Foster

Franklin

Horn

Hunt

Sadler

Smitherman

Welch 1
TOTAL ]

i. Kirk Rieger was appointed to Area 2 of the Willow Run Service District Board.

Kirk Rieger

= = = =

D. Willow Run Municipal Service District Board — Area 5 — Appoint 1
Willow Run MSD
Areas

Foster

Franklin

Horn

Hunt

Sadler
Smitherman
Welch

Philip May

===

=

TOTAL 6

i. Philip May was reappointed to Area 5 of the Willow Run Service District Board.

E. Willow Run Municipal Service District Board — At-Large — Appoint 1

Willow Run M5D Glenn
At-Large Yarnell
Foster 1
Franklin 1
Horn 1
Hunt 1
Sadler 1
Smitherman
Welch 1
TOTAL ]

i. Glenn Yarnell was reappointed to the At-Large position of the Willow Run Service District
Board.



F. Zoning Board of Adjustments - Appoint 3 Permanent, Appoint 1 Alternate

Zoning Board of Vance . Scott . . Annemarie
; David Hunt Kirk Rieger
Adjustments Horner MNorman Stanford
Foster Perm Perm Alt Perm
Franklin Perm Perm Alt Perm
Horn Perm Perm Alt Perm
Hunt Perm Perm Alt Perm
Sadler Perm Perm Alt Perm
Smitherman
Welch Perm Perm Alt Perm
TOTAL i i 0 i i
i Vance Horner, David Hunt, and Annemarie Stanford were reappointed to the Zoning Board
of Adjustments.

ii. Kirk Rieger was appointed as an alternate to the Zoning Board of Adjustments.

G. Public Art Advisory Committee — Appoint 5

w John Barbara Holli Conger Thomas Elizabeth Rebecca

J_ Armbruster | Campbell Jenkins Miller Scherbak

Committee

Foster 1 1 1 1

Franklin 1 1 1

Horn 1 1 1

Hunt 1 1 1

Sadler 1 1 1 1

Smitherman

Welch 1 1 1 1 1
TOTAL 3 b 4 b ] 5

i.  Barbara Campbell, Holli Conger, Thomas Jenkins, Elizabeth Miller and Rebecca Scherbak
were appointed to the Public Art Advisory Committee.

H. Appointment Order 2023-003 — Veronica Thomas — Public Safety Advisory Committee — Council
Member Franklin moved to approve Appointment Order 2023-003. The motion was seconded by

Council Member Welch and approved unanimously. (Appointment Order 2023-003 is herein incorporated
by reference into the minutes.)

7. Old Business
A. Mediated settlement agreement update — Manager Ayers reported the final settlement
agreement and release with Solomon Development was signed on February 27. The Town paid a
total of $1,959,372.20 to Solomon Development. As part of the agreement, the Town received
ownership of 200 North Street and 145 Belnette Drive.

8. New Business
A. Resolution 2023-016 — Authorizing Town Manager to sign Lewisville-Vienna/Robinhood Road
Roundabout Supplemental Agreement - $1,225,188 — Council Member Sadler moved to approve




Resolution 2023-016. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved
unanimously. (Resolution 2023-016 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

B. Resolution 2023-017 — Authorizing Town Manager to sign Great Wagon Road rights-of-way and
related documents — Council Member Franklin moved to approve Resolution 2023-017. The
motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2023-017 is
herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

C. Ordinance 2023-012 — Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 Fee Schedule — MAWCC fees —
Council Member Sadler moved to approve Ordinance 2023-012. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Franklin and approved unanimously. (Ordinance 2023-012 is herein incorporated by
reference into the minutes.)

D. Ordinance 2023-013 — Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 — Staffing — Council Member Hunt
moved to approve Ordinance 2023-013. The motion was seconded by Council Member Welch.
Mayor Horn, Mayor Pro Tem Foster and Council Members Hunt and Sadler voted in favor. Council

Member Franklin opposed. Motion passed 5-1. (Ordinance 2023-013 is herein incorporated by reference
into the minutes.)

9. Administrative Reports

A. Upcoming events and closings
i. April 7—town offices closed

B. Clerk’s Report
i. CityVision — April 25-27 — Concord

C. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on March 2, 2023
i. Resolution 2023-013—- Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office Flock camera authorization
ii. Ordinance 2023-010 — Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 — To send four Council

Members to CityVision 2023 - $4,924

10. For the Good of the Order
A. Public comments — None
B. Council comments
i. Council Member Sadler noted the Flock cameras serve the purpose of reading license plates to
identify stolen vehicles or vehicles involved in a crime. The cameras are not for surveillance.
ii. Council Member Welch requested clarification on Mr. Miller's comments about the tree
removal. Mr. Miller answered that the Town paid for the trees to be removed; however, they
were not completely removed. He expressed concern for the Town paying for services not
rendered. Manager Ayers noted the Willow Run Municipal Service District Board and Town
staff recently did a site visit of the area. Areas of concern were noted at that time.

11. Adjournment — Council Member Franklin moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:44 PM. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



Attach_ment #5

L

% ) NP N N N K N N
S5 e Jedragdi iy gde g syt
NN B0 Bom Bro BN ok Bk Bk ok Bk B

DT
0

~~~~~~~~~~~
v W5

L
%2
2u)

i,
W,

N
*
&

o
‘-; ’z e S e e [ 2
S .| 1
FIRIRLITIY A L R E AR AN LA LA LE 'a_-l

o

!

%
o,

s

T

re
s

A

75

5%

R e A
:., 3! 5’
Sk

geg.-{ <
&2

NN

% ¥
P

.#___.}_"“ .:_)‘-‘ ¥ .Q.): o
PR

INANIN

S

v

A
i
Ay

« > P TR R
. P *"l’*,ﬁ,’. L W)
A R TN

i d
Fv N 5
I

o )

T D

ERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION

The Lewisville Town Council expresses their sincere appreciation to |

Meghan Few

for her outstanding service to the Town of Lewisville
as a member of the Lewisville Planning Board.

This the 13t day of April 2023.

Mayo*{ Mike Horn

dlEl Mike Horn  Jeanne Marie Foster  Fred Franklin -~ Melissa Hunt  Ken Sadler  David Smitherman  Jane Welch | \iPigas
S Mayor Pro Tem Council Member Council Member Council Member  Councif Member Council Memberiiit

TR I IR AR R G NI T FIUEIRELE T Db LT i JERGI EiEai e

B0

&
3

&
L=
1 3
A &

Ell lnaca

=K

e

B

=[S

= P

il

Sh| B

Sl b

=i b

g LA

=ik

=i Ligh,

il

i byt

£l

2 Fah

e
Bizil kT

E ‘ »

2|1 P R A

iB AR g Ny &

5 A%X

:sﬁglé’ 3 i;"‘!t W

Wi =i aurnn

BT T I B I BT L L IR A L (B b e, m FOTTTRCTw: o e

------ irte :

Ll T "

R MO, WL R G, o I WL A e SR St : e P (S ‘

-8 el Y QR MG Ay N R Ry B Ly S LRy X 3 LY P ) - ﬂ? .\;*, %B* & A Q §
i‘ ™ O, LW & St Ll ooy R IR Y L0 W .sﬂa{ i‘* R ,9“*;‘ o'% : ! A
- . - ; - &

[T i i TS |-




Attachment #6

T R R e IR [N

W A N, . n&a-‘- u"r ,- "kél . Ty " _ ]
SEhaarsyINaNAN AN

R DR BN B, B BaN BN, B SR ok
o s e e P e R ey 1 AW

CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION |

AN N W X N W W N New Wy N N N
R R A R R R R e R R R e
N SR BN B &i:mm;{ Tk Box Don Bk B BB Bk

11| EEIN

= o=
Eie¥ 5 |1 EH

The Lewisville Town Council expresses their sincere appreciation to

Jesiica

for her outstanding service to the Town of Lewisville
as a member of the Lewisville Planning Board.

i
ar ; ¥ fy X y X ¥ -
f‘?‘%‘é{ CR o BN Y i el ey ey o S o
ﬁv‘%ﬁ.. PN e N T ) Gl Do g 2 WG, )
Il [EN R O T e A T T LI

This the 13 day of April 2023.

-/

Mayor I(/I_ike Horn

IR RN [ e J\Ii\iIHI“HxHHIHL‘_‘ RIMIHEIE

WA W W W I W W g N

W XA WO W N W W 2
wNE

o«

] k
* e Ooe Yol
VTR R TH AT

s

TAPTI L ey
A
ek A

X
s

A
e A
- i

Qe o
Vit 2u ¥

& LA
2 Lo

JiZi Mike Horn  Jeanne Marie Foster ~ Fred Franklin ~ Melissa Hunt  Ken Sadler  David Smitherman  Jane Welch
i5lf Mayor Maeyor Pro Tem Council Member  Council Member  Council Member  Council Member Councif Member

||||||||| ES1TITIRIENRE TN yenipint LTI T N T L T R IR R S T L TR T

A A AT AT AASE YO SO N N N A WA 0 Wi WA N
™y 3> b b - b ] 4 Fa : & *& ey Lok ) O Pt Sl s St o AN A
PIAFREIFIFIGIFES RESESFRFRERPIFRIRER LS

PR %€ %
k v'b, W '.
T s B TR TR TR L0 VT ST EENE SRR LRV AT ST 1035434 LAV SIS SR 0 IIET I ST LI n (T ZER ST TR

R T e L T L e L L B L L T L T O

X

E

e

i




(BT o

N Bk TR Bra Bk Fa B

AL

TR A

Attachment ¢z,

g -le ; V&‘}e" _va‘}'.' g S | 9---3- .“‘._L,‘-. T

3 AR AN N
BN B Bk BoR B B ‘

Tz gses

2 '&v &V'-v!%

e 2 glers

ey = R

i WE]l+

e 2N o kS

X ‘i{r g% THI

P ¥ T, T S W I
TP 8T

W,

i

EINTAND]
™
P Y

-

» ¥y T
-3&3;97.

g
St

= -3 o
BN N e BN f
TUCIEOR AT R R TR I LR TEI T

[TRHITHIE
S

s
Fooie
%

wo
a3 ‘5:

LLELRTRIE AT

)

[HIHHIR I EETEIE
WA WA
LIELNN

b

o
""a'-'.‘tl b Ay T e

Ad

b .
:__%-%
X7

o
=¥

g Xr W N W 0 W Wi'g
& ) S

7
*

¥,
At

B ?35}
XL

b .
(3
&

o, SR
1

R
5%

ERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION

The Lewisville Town Council expresses their sincere appreciation to

Dyan Welhoer

for his outstanding service to the Town of Lewisville as a member

of the Lewisville Parks, Recreation & Cultural Development Board.

This the 13t day of April 2023.

f oo

Mayor Mfille Horn

Mike Horn  Jeanne Marie Foster  Fred Franklin Melissa Hunt  Ken Sadler David Smitherman  Jane Welch

Mayor Pro Tem Council Member Council Member Councif Member  Council Member

LEERATHEE M TR LI

nA
-
&y

>

-

S

Bl v

A AA A A A TATAR
uvx s : : 4 : 4

iy e
el YRy E

Councif Member

. T
Com s '
i}f‘\‘ .:’gﬁ"' X '

@554
Fagx

3

.",&

..........................

T D Rl daniipdegeed N L R T N L L T e SETATE IR

................................

o e A o = x_“.;‘ B 13 =
RO EE N dw RES AR - e O, Y
& gy 2. € L ; *
t“l 3 o) %
f g




Attachment #8

PROCLAMATION 2023-001
VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION WEEK
APRIL 16-22, 2023

WHEREAS, the month of April has been designated as Volunteer Appreciation Month to
recognize the hard work, dedication and passion of volunteers and national service
members throughout our nation; and,

WHEREAS, during National Volunteer Week, we celebrate the impact of volunteer
service; and,

WHEREAS, through our boards, committees and other activities, volunteers have
dedicated countless hours helping to guide the growth of our community and fulfilling the
vision established in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan; and,

WHEREAS, Town of Lewisville believes that government alone cannot meet all of our
Town’s needs, so we recognize businesses, faith-based organizations, non-profit
organizations, foundations and individuals who serve in Town government and in our
community making a difference; and,

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville is committed to encouraging volunteerism and national
service among its employees, residents, partners, businesses and organizations.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Lewisville Town Council proclaims April 16-22-2023 as Volunteer

Appreciation Week in the Town of Lewisville and urges our residents to recognize the
positive impact of volunteerism and national service in our community.

Proclaimed this 13t day of April 2023.

Mike Horn, Mayor



Attachment #9

PROCLAMATION 2023-002
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MONTH
MAY 2023

WHEREAS, historic preservation is an effective tool for economic development, tourism
promotion, revitalizing neighborhoods, fostering local pride, and maintaining community
character while enhancing livability; and,

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville has demonstrated its support for historic preservation
through its participation in historic preservation efforts within the town; and,

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Historical Society is one of the longest established organizations
in the town and is dedicated to preserving our local historical heritage; and,

WHEREAS, Historic Preservation Month is co-sponsored by the Forsyth County Historic
Resources Commission, Preservation Forsyth, and other local preservation and
neighborhood organizations throughout Forsyth County, and,

WHEREAS, these organizations encourage members of the community to participate in
creative and fun events related to historic preservation as a way to celebrate Preservation
Month 2023, and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Town Council in Lewisville do
hereby declare the month of May 2023 as Historic Preservation Month and call upon the
residents of Lewisville to join hundreds of communities across the United States in
recognizing and participating in this special observance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution be spread upon the minutes of the Town
of Lewisville and that a copy be furnished to the Forsyth County Historic Resources
Commission.

Adopted this 13t™ day of April 2023.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



Attachment #10

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE
2023-004 APPOINTMENT ORDER
LEWISVILLE BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE
WHEREAS, the Town Council established the Lewisville Beautification Committee in October 1991; and

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Beautification Committee is a planning agency in the planning organization
charter; and,

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the Lewisville Beautification Committee serves a vital
community function.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL appoints the following to
serve on the Lewisville Beautification Committee through March 31, 2024:

Alex Branower Member

Appointed this the 13 day of April 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



Attachment #11

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE
2023-005 APPOINTMENT ORDER
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, the Town Council established the Lewisville Environmental Issues Committee, Recycling
Committee, Environmental Education Committee and Special Environmental Projects Committee to

address environmental concerns in March 1995; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council consolidated these committees into one named the Environmental
Conservation and Sustainability Committee; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the Environmental Conservation and Sustainability
Committee serves a vital community function.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL appoints the following to
serve on the Environmental Conservation and Sustainability Committee through March 31, 2024:

Alex Branower Member

Appointed this the 13 day of April 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



STAFF REPORT

Attachment #12

ITEM: (1) ORDINANCE 2023-014
(2) ORDINANCE 2023-015
SUBJECT: (1) AMENDMENT TO THE ROUNDABOUT AT

LEWISVILLE-VIENNA ROAD AND ROBINHOOD ROAD
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE

(2) BUDGET AMENDMENT TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM
THE GENERAL FUND TO THE ROUNDABOUT AT
LEWISVILLE-VIENNA ROAD AND ROBINHOOD ROAD

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

PREPARED BY:

PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR

DATE SUBMITTED:

4/6/2023

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The Roundabout at Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road Capital Project Ordinance was established by the
Town Council on June 13, 2019 with an original budget of $1,270,000. The Project is still in the preliminary
engineering phase. However, in anticipation that the current budget will not be sufficient to cover the increasing
costs of construction, the Town of Lewisville has requested and been granted supplemental funding in the amount
of $1,225,188. This added to our original funding of $1,016,000 brings our total federal funding up to $2,241,188
for the project. The Town’s 20% match under the original agreement was $254,000. The Town’s 20% match under
the supplemental agreement is $306,297. The current estimated cost of the project is $2,801,485. Of that amount,
80% or $2,241,188 will be paid for with federal funds and 20% or $560,297 will come from the Town of Lewisville.

This is summarized in the table below.

Fund Source

Federal Funds

Town Match

Original Agreement S 1,016,000 (80% S 254,000 |20%
Supplemental Agreement 1,225,188 |80% 306,297 | 20%
Subtotal S 2,241,188 S 560,297

Total Estimated Cost

S 2,801,485




STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION:

(1) Staff is requesting that Council approve Ordinance 2023-014 that amends the Roundabout at Lewisville-
Vienna Road and Robinhood Road Capital Project Ordinance in the amount of $1,531,485. This will bring
the project’s budget up to the current estimated cost of $2,801,485 as demonstrated below:

Original Budget — Ordinance 2019-027 $1,270,000
Amendment — Ordinance 2023-014 $1,531,485
Total Budget as Amended $2,801,485

(2) staff is also requesting that Council approve a transfer of $306,297 from the General Fund to the
Roundabout at Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road Capital Projects Fund. This transfer equals the
Town’s 20% match required under the supplemental agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT:

1) The budget for the Roundabout at Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road Capital Project will increase
by $1,531,485 to $2,801,485.

2) The transfer of the 20% match under the supplemental agreement in the amount of $306,297 will come
out of general fund balance appropriated.

ATTACHMENT(S):

1) Ordinance 2023-014 - Amending Roundabout at Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road
Capital Project Ordinance

2) Ordinance 2023-015 - Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 to transfer $306,297 from the

General Fund to the Roundabout at Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road Capital Projects
Fund

C:\Users\townclerk\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\PUNSPPBQ\Staff Report-Amendment to Roundabout Project.docx



ORDINANCE 2023-014 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
AMENDING CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE
ROUNDABOUT AT LEWISVILLE-VIENNA ROAD AND ROBINHOOD ROAD CAPITAL
PROJECTS FUND

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council established the Capital Project Ordinance 2019-027 for
the purchase of right-of-way, utility relocation, design, environmental documentation, and
construction in the conversion of the existing intersection to a single lane roundabout at SR 1308
(Lewisville-Vienna Road) and SR 1348 (Robinhood Road) in the Town of Lewisville; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville has engaged Kimley Horn and Associates to provide
professional services on the project that includes design, traffic control, pavement marking plans,
hydraulics, erosion control, location surveys, signing, planning, natural environment, public
involvement, utilities coordination, sub-surface utility engineering (SUE), and right-of-way; and

WHEREAS, appropriations were originally made in the amount of $1,270,000 for this project; and
WHEREAS, the Town Council has been awarded supplemental federal funding in the amount of
$1,225,188. This amount added to the original federal funding amount of $1,016,000 brings the
Town’s total federal award to $2,241,188; and

WHEREAS, due to the rising cost of construction and other costs, there is a need to amend the
budget to cover the remaining phases of the project to include right-of-way and construction.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the Town of Lewisville desires to amend Section 3
and 4 of Ordinance 2019-027 and the following amount is appropriated by amendment to

Ordinance 2019-027 to complete this project:

Section 3. The following amounts are appropriated to complete this project:

Preliminary Engineering 53-00-5600-6002 $201,404
Right-of-Way/Utilities 53-00-5600-6001 $223,450
Construction 53-00-5600-6000 $1,106,631

Total Expenditures $1,531,485

Section 4. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project:

Transfer from General Fund 53-00-3980-0000 $1,531,485
Total Revenues $1,531.485



Section 5. The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Capital Projects Fund
sufficient detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the contract agreements and
state regulations.

Section 6. The Finance Officer is directed to report, on a monthly basis, on the financial status of
this project.

Section 7. Copies of this capital projects ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk of the Governing
Body, and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Director for direction in carrying out this project.

Adopted this the 13th day of April, 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council.

ATTEST:

Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE
Budget Amendment Ordinance 2023-015
Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001

Attachment #13

FINANCE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

Budget Amendment # 26

Pam Orrell, Finance Officer

CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
Streets - Transfer to
Roundabout at Lewisville-
Vienna Road and Robinhood General Fund - Fund Balance
10-20-5600-4994 Road Capital Projects Fund S 306,297.00 |10-00-3990-9000 Appropriated S 306,297.00
S 306,297.00 S 306,297.00

EXPLANATION:

To transfer $306,297 from the General Fund to the Roundabout at Lewisville-Vienna Road

and Robinhood Road Capital Projects Fund which represents the Town's 20% match under

the Supplemental Funding Agreement with NC Department of Transportation.

RECOMMENDED BY: Pam Orrell, Town Finance Director

Approved and effective upon adoption this the 13th day of April 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council.

ATTEST:

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk

Mike Horn, Mayor




Attachment #14

STAFF REPORT

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2023-019

SUBJECT: CONTRACT WITH GIBSON & COMPANY, P.A. FOR AUDIT
SERVICES

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR

DATE SUBMITTED: 4/13/2023

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The Town of Lewisville issued a “Request for Proposals” or “RFP” for audit services for the fiscal year 2022-2023. The Local
Government Commission maintains a database of CPA firms that provide audit and accounting services to local governments
in North Carolina. We sent the RFP to all 38 CPA firms on the list that service the Piedmont Triad. We requested that the
proposals be submitted in 2 sections and that they be sealed. The first section is comprised of the audit firm’s prior
experience and qualifications of its personnel in performing governmental audits. The second section consists of completed
cost estimate sheets. Two audit firms submitted bids. We evaluated each firm on their educational and technical
qualifications as well as experience and audit approach. Those making the first cut were then evaluated based on cost.

The following bids were received for the FY 2022-2023 audit:

1. Gibson & Company, P.A. (current audit firm for the Town)
-GAGAS Audit (Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards) - $20,745
-Single Audit - If total of federal and State expenditures is under $4,000,000, then $4,000 for the first major
program and $2,500 for each additional program. If the total of federal and State expenditures exceeds
$4,000,000, then an additional fee of $1,000 for every $1,000,000 in excess of $4,000,000 will be added.

2. RH CPAs, PLLC
-GAGAS Audit (Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards) - $33,983
-Single Audit - $2,500 for each major program.

We judged each firm to be fully qualified to perform our annual audit. That just left us to evaluate each firm based on cost.
Gibson & Company, P.A. submitted the lower bid and were thus chosen to perform audit services for the current year.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION:

Staff is requesting that Council approve Resolution 2023-019 to approve the contract with Gibson & Company, P.A.
to provide audit services for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT:
See Background/Summary Section above.
ATTACHMENT(S):

(1) Contract with Gibson & Company, P.A.

(2) Resolution 2023-019 approving the audit contract with Gibson & Company, P.A. for FY 2022-2023
audit services.

C:\Users\townclerk\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\PUNSPPBQ\Staff Report-Gibsib Company 2022-2023 Audit.docx



RESOLUTION 2023-019 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
AUTHORIZING CONTRACT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 AUDIT SERVICES

WHEREAS, Gibson & Company, P.A. has provided auditing services since 2001; and

WHEREAS, Gibson & Company, P.A. has submitted its contract and engagement letter for
services for the annual independent audit of the Town for Fiscal Year 2022-2023; and

WHEREAS, the audit is a budgeted line item; and

WHEREAS, the cost of the audit is greater than $10,000.00 (ten thousand dollars) and requires
formal approval.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the
contract for the firm of Gibson & Company, P.A. to perform the annual independent audit of the
Town'’s financial statement for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. The amount for the audit of the financial
statements is $20,745.00. A flat additional charge of $4,000.00 is required if a single audit is
required with one major program, a flat additional charge of $2,500.00 for each additional major
program and $1,000 for every $1,000,000 in excess of $4,000,000.

Adopted this the 13t™ day of January 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



L.GC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022

The | Governing Board

Town Council

of Primary Government Unit

Town of Lewisville

and | Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable)
N/A.

Primary Government Unit, togethier with DPCU (if applicable), hereinafter referred to as Governmental Unit(s)

and | Auditor Name

Gibson & Company, P.A.

Auditor Address

14]1 Old Mill Circle Winston-Salem, NC 27103

Hereinafter refefred to as Auditor

for Fisgal Year Ending |Date Audit-Will Be-Submitted to LGC
06/30/23 10/31/23
Mist be within. four months of FYE.

hereby agree as follows:

1 The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by U.8. generally accepted auditing
standards (GAAS) and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds-and/or divisions of the
Governmental Unit(s). The nen-major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall be
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion shall
be rendered in-relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business- type activities, the aggregate
DPCUs, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-
major government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types). The basic
financial staternents shall include budgetary comparison information in a budgetary comparison statement,
rather than as R8I, for the General Fund and any annually budgeted Special Revenue funds.

2. Ata minimium, the Auditor shall conduct the audit and render the report in accerdance with GAAS. The
Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) if the
Governmental Unit expended $100,000 or more in combined Federal and State financial assistance during the
reportinig period. The auditor shall perform a Single Audit if required by Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200 Uniformm Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
Subpart F (Uniform Guidance) or the State Single Audit Implementation Act. This audit and all associated audit
documentation may be subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State
laws, including the staffs of the Office of State Auditor (O8A) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If
the audit requires a federal single audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance (§200.501), itls
recommended that the Auditor and Governmental Unit(s) jointly agree, in advance of the execution of this
contract, which party is responsible for submission of the audit and the accompanying data collection form to
the Federal Audit Clearinghouse as required underthe Uniform Guidance (§200,512).

Effective for audits of fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2023, the LGC will allow auditors to-consider whether
a unit qualifies as a State low-risk auditee based upon federal criteria in the Uniform Guidance

§200.520(a), and (b) through (e) as it applies to State awards. In addition to the federal criteria in the Uniform
Guidance, audits must have been submitted timely to the LGC, If in the reporting year, or in either of the two
previous years, the unit reported a Financial Performance Indicator of Concern that the audit was late, then

Page 1



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022

the report was not submitted timely for State low-risk auditee status. Please refer to "Discussion of Single
Audits in North Carolina" on the LGC's website for more information.

If the audit and Auditor communication are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review
may be forwarded to the North Carolina State Board of CPA Examiners (NC State Board).

3. Ifan entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit
standards, the entity’s auditor shall make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of
the group auditor in accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42.

4, This contract contemplates an unmodified opinion being rendered. If during the process of conducting
the audit, the Auditor determines that it will not be possible to render an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements of the unit, the Auditor shall contact the LGC Staff to discuss the circumstances leading to that
conclusion as soon as is practical and before the final report is issued. The audit shall include such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully
explained in an attachment to this contract.

5. If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing
Standards, 2018 revision, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this
engagement, the Auditor warrants that he/she has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing
education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of the most
recent peer review report to the Governmental Unit(s) and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of an
audit contract, Subsequent submissions of the report are required only upon report expiration or upon auditor’s
receipt of an updated peer review report. If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the
Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit(s) without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a
peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Auditing Standards or if financial statements are not
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and fail to include all
disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why in an attachment to this
contract or’in an amendment.

8, Itis agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of
audit submitted to LGC Staff within four months of fiscal year end. If it becomes necessary to-amend the audit
fee or the date that the audit report will be submitted to the LGC, an amended contract aleng with a written
explanation of the change shall be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for-approval.

7. Itis agreed that GAAS include a review of the Governmental Unit's (Units’) systems of internal control
and accounting as same relate to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law requirements
applicable thereto; that the Auditor shall make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the written
report of audit, to the Governing Board setting forth his/her findings, together with his recommendations for
improvement. That written report shall include all matters defined as "significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses” in AU-C 265 of the AICPA Professional Standards (Clarified). The Auditor shall file a copy of that
report with the Secretary of the LGC.

For GAAS or Government Auditing Standards audits, if an auditor issues an AU-C §260 report, commanly
referred to as “Governance Letter,” LGC staff does not require the report to be submitted unless the auditor
cites significant findings or issues from the-audit, as defined in AU-C §260.12 - .14. This would include issues
such as difficulties encountered during the audit, significant or unusual transactions, uncorrected
misstatements, matters that are difficult or contentious reviewed with those charged with governance, and other
significant matters.

Page 2



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 1112022

8. Alf local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the

approval of the Secretary of the LGC. This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures

related to internal controls, bookkeeping or other assistance necessary to prepare the Governmental Unit's
records for audit, financial statement preparation, any finance-related investigations, or any other audit- related
work in the State of North Carolina. Approval is also required for the Alternative Compliance Examination
Engagement for auditing the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

expenditures as allowed by US Treasury. Approval is not required on audit contracts and invoices for

system improvements and similar services of a non-auditing nature.

9. Invoices for services rendered under these contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit(s) until
the invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the LGC. This also includes any progress billings

[G.S. 159-34 and 115C-447]. All invoices for audit work shall be submitted in PDF format to the Secretary

of the LGC for approval. the invoice marked 'approved" with approval date shall be returned to the Auditor

to present to the Gavernmental Unit(s) for payment. This paragraph is not applicable to contracts for audits

of hospitals.

10.  In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Governmental
Unit(s) shall pay to the Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC if required, the fee, which includes
any costs the Auditor may incur from work paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance program
required by third parties (federal and state grantor and oversight agencies or other organizations)

as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts. This does not include fees for any pre-issuance
reviews that may be required by the NC Association of CPAs (NCACPA) Peer Review Committee or NC State
Board of CPA Examiners (see Item 13).

11."  If the Governmental Unit(s) has/have outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall submit to LGC Staff,
either in the notes to the audited financial statements or as a separate report, a calculation demonstrating
compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor shall submit to LGC Staff
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit's (Units’) audited financial statements any other bond compliance
statements or additional reports required by the authorizing bond documents, unless otherwise specified in the

bond documents.

12.  After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This
report shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management's Discussion and Analysis,
(b) the financial statements and notes. of the Governmental Unit(s) and all of its component units prepared in
accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the Governmental Unit(s) or required for full
disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor's opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shall furnish the
required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board uponcompletion.

13, If the audit firm is required by the NC State Board, the NCACPA Peer Review Committee, or the
Secretary of the LGC to have a pre=issuance review of its audit work, there shall be a statement in the
engagement letter indicating the pre-issuance review requirement. There also shall be a statement that the
Governmental Unit(s) shall not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review shall be performed
prior to the completed audit being submitted to LGC Staff. The pre-issuance review report shall accompany the
audit report upon submission to LGC Staff,

Page 3



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022

14.  The Auditor shall submit the report of audit in PDF format to LGC Staff. For audits of units other than
hospitals, the audit report should be submitted when (or prior to) submitting the final invoice for services
rendered. The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a matter of public record for
inspection, review and copy in the offices of the LGC by any interested parties. Any subsequent revisions to
these reports shall be sent to the Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements, excluding the
Auditors’ opinion, may be used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings by municipal bond
rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and for other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit(s) without requiring consent of the Auditor. If the LGC
Staff determines that corrections need to be made to the Governmental Unit's (Units') financial statements
and/or the compliance section, those corrections shall be provided within three business days of notification
unless another deadline is agreed to by LGC Staff.

15.  Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than
necessary under ordinary circumstances; the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board in writing of the need for
such additional investigation and the additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the
Secretary of the LGC, this contract may be modified or amended to include the increased time, compensation,
or both as may be agreed upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor.

16.  If an approved contract needs to be modified or amended for any reason, the change shall be made in
writing and pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee (pre-audit requirement does not apply to
hospitals). This amended contract shall be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change,
signed and dated by all original parties to the contract. It shall then be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for
approval. No change to the audit contract shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the
Governing Board, and the Auditor.

17. A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the
Governmental Unit(s), shall be attached to this contract, and except for fees, work, and terms not related to audit
services, shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein as part of this contract. In case of conflict
between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract shall take
precedence. Engagement letter terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void:unless the conflicting
terms of this contract are specifically deleted in ltem 30 of this contract. Engagement letters containing
indemnification clauses shall not be accepted by LGC Staff.
18.  Speclal %rovi‘sions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in ah attachment.

See attached addendum and atlached engagement letter
19. A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a
DPCU is subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and
a separate audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not to be issued
and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit, the DPCU shall be named along with the primary
government on this audit contract. DPCU Board approval date, signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and
finance officer also shall be included on this contract.
20.  The contract shall be executed, pre-audited (pre-audit requifement does not apply to hospitals), and
physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit(s) and the Auditor, then submitted in PDF format to
the Secretary of the LGC.
21.  The contract is not valid until it is approved by the Secretary of the LGC. The staff of the LGC shall notify

the Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the
contract is approved.

22. Retention of Client Records: Auditors are subject to the NC State Board of CPA Examiners' Retention of
Client Records Rule 21 NCAC 08N .0305 as it relates to the provision of audit and other attest services, as well
as non-attest services. Clients and former clients should be familiar with the requirements of this rule prior to
requesting the return of records; Page 4



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 1172022

23.  This contract may be terminated at any time by mutual consent and agreement of the Governmental
Unit(s) and the Auditor, provided that (a) the consent to terminate is in writing and signed by both parties,
(b) the parties have agreed on the fee amount which shall be paid to the Auditor (if applicable), and (c) no
termination shall be effective until approved in writing by the Secretary of the LGC.

24.  The Governmental Unit's (Units') failure or forbearance to enforce, or waiver of, any right or an event
of breach or default on one occasion or instance shall not constitute the waiver of such right, breach or
defauit on any subsequent occasion or instance.

25.  There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto
that shall be enforceable unless entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved
by the Secretary of the LGC.

26. E-Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor
utilizes any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of
NCGS Chapter 64, Article 2.

27.  Applicable to audits with fiscal year ends of June 30, 2020 and later. For all non-attest services,
the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional Code of Conduct and
Government Auditing Standards, 2018 Revision (as applicable). Financial statement preparation assistance
shall be deemed a “significant threat” requiring the Auditor to apply safeguards sufficient to reduce the threat
to an acceptable level. If the Auditor cannot reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the Auditor cannot
complete the audit. If the Auditor is able to reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the documentation of
this determination, including the safeguards applied, must be included in the audit workpapers.

All non-attest service(s) being performed by the Auditor that are necessary to perform the audit must be
identified and included in this contract. The Governmental Unit shall designate an individual with the suitable
skills, knowledge, and/or experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the services and accept responsibility for
the results of the services performed. If the Auditor is able to identify an individual with the appropriate SKE,
s/he must document and include in the audit workpapers how he/she reached that conclusion, If the Auditor
determines that an individual with the appropriate SKE cannct be identified, the Auditor cannot perform both
the non-attest service(s) and the audit. See "Fees for Audit Services" page of this contract to disclose the
person identified as having the appropriate SKE for the Governmental Unit.

28. Applicable to audits with fiscal year ends of June 30, 2021 and later. The auditor shall present the
audited financial statements including any compliance reports to the government unit's governing body or
audit committee in an official meeting in open session as soon as the audited financial statements are
available but not later than 45 days after the submission of the audit report to the Secretary. The auditor’s
presentation to the government unit's governing body or audit committee shall include:
a) the description of each finding, including all material weaknesses and significant deficiencies, as
found by the auditor, and any other issues related to the internal controls or fiscal health of the
government unit as disclosed in the management letter, the Single Audit or Yellow Book reports, or
any other communications from the auditor regarding internal controls as required by current auditing
standards set by the Accounting Standards Board or its successor,
b) the status of the prior year audit findings;
c) the values of Financial Performance Indicators based on information presented in the audited
financial staternents; and
d) notification to the governing body that the governing body shall develop a "Response to the
Auditor's Findings, Recommendations, and Fiscal Matters,” if required under 20 NCAC 03 .0508.

29. Information based on the audited financial statements shall be submitted to the Secretary for the purpose
of identifying Financial Performance Indicators and Financial Performance Indicators of Concern. See 20

NCAC 03 .0502(c)(6). Page 5



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022

30. All of the above paragraphs are understood and shall apply to this contract, except the following
numbered paragraphs shall be deleted (See ltem 17 for clarification).

None

31. The process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change. Auditors and
units should use the submission process and instructions in effect at the time of submission. Refer to the
N.C. Department of State Treasurer website at https://www.nctreasurer.com/state-and-local-
government-finance-division/local-government-commission/submitting-your-audit

32. All communications regarding audit contract requests for modification or official approvals will be sent
to the email addresses provided on the signature pages that follow.

33. Modifications to the language and terms contained in this contract form (LGC-205) are not allowed.

Page 8



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022
FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES

1. For all non-attest services, the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional
Code of Conduct (as applicable) and Government Auditing Standards,2018 Revision. Refer to ltem 27 of
this contract for specific requirements. The following information must be provided by the Auditor; contracts
presented to the LGC without this information will be not be approved.

Financial statements were prepared by:  [JAuditor ~ [[Governmental Unit  [JThird Party

If applicable: Individual at Governmental Unit designated to have the suitable skills, knowledge, and/or
experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the non-attest services and accept responsibility for the
results of these services:

Name! Title and Unit/ Company: Email Address:

[Pam A. Orrell I [Finance Officer/Town of Lewisvilld |ﬁnance@lewisvillenc.net |

OR Not Applicable [ (1dentification of SKE Individual on the LGC-206 Contract is not applicable for
GAAS-only audits or audits with FYEs prior to June 30, 2020.)

2. Fees may not be included in this contract for work performed on Annual Financial Information Reports

(AFIRs), Form 990s, or other services not associated with audit fees and costs. Such fees may be included in the
engagement letter but may not be included in this contract or in any invoices requiring approval of the LGC. See
ltems 8 and 13 for details on other allowable and excluded fees.

3. The audit fee information included in the table below for both the Primary Government Fees and the DPCU
Fees (if applicable) should be reported as a specific dollar amount of audit fees for the year under this contract. If
any language other than an amount is included here, the contract will be returned to the audit form for correction.

4. Prior to the submission of the completed audited financial report and applicable compliance reports subject to
this contract, or to an amendment to this contract (if required) the Auditor may submit interim invoices for
approval for services rendered under this contract to the Secretary of the LGC, not to exceed 75% of the billings
for the unit's last annual audit that was submitted to the Secretary of the LGC. All invoices for services rendered
in an audit engagement as defined in 20 NCAC .0503 shall be submitted to the Commission for approval before
any payment is made. Payment before approval is a violation of law. (This paragraph not applicable to contracts
and invoices associated with audits of hospitals).

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FEES

Primary Government Unit Town of Lewisville
Audit Fee $ 20,745(1f Single Audit required, see addendum)
Additional Fees Not Included ih Audit Fee:
Fee per Major Program $ -0-
Writing Financial Statements ) § ~0-
Al Other Non-Attest Services §-0-
DPEU FEES (if applicable)
Discretely Presented Component Unit : N/A
Audit Fee . $0
Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee:
Fee per Major Program $-0-
Writing Financial Statements $-0-
All Other Non-Attest Services $-0-




LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022

SIGNATURE PAGE

AUDIT FIRM

Audit Firm*
Gibson & Company, P.A, "
Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed)* | Signaiul
R. Harold Gibson, Managing Partiier/Principal
Date* N Email Address®

3 *’q - harold@gibcocpa,com

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Governmental Unit*
Town of Lewisville

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract”
(3.8.159-34{a) or G.8.115C-447(a))

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed)* | Signature*
Mike Horm; Mayor
Date | Email Address

mayor@lewisvillenc.net

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) | Signature
N/A
Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT — PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE
Required by G.S. 1569-28(at) or G.S. 115C-441(a1).
Not applicable to hospital contracts.

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer* wypedorpinesf Signature*

Pam A. Orrell, Finance Officer

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate* Email Address*
finance@lewisvillenc.net

Page 8




LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022

SIGNATURE PAGE - DPCU
(complete only if applicable)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DPCU*
N/A

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit
Contract* (Ref: G.S. 1569-34(a) or G.S. 116C-447(a))

DPCU Chairperson (typed or printed)* Signature*

Date* Email Address*

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA") | Signature
N/A

Date Email Address

DPCU - PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Required by G.8. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1).
Not applicable to hospital contracts.

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

DPCU Finance Officer (typed or printed)” Signature®
N/A
Date of Pre-Audit Certificate® Email Address*

Remember to print this form, and obtain all
required signatures prior to submission.

Page 9



ADDENDUM TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS AND ENGAGEMENT LETTER
JUNE 30, 2023

The audit fees quoted above are for a Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) audit, or a
Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) audit. If a Single Audit is required,
the fees will be increased as follows:

A) If the total of Federal and State expenditures as listed on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) are between $0 and $4,000,000, an
additional fee of $4,000 will be added. There will also be an additional fee of $2,500
for each major program in excess of the first major program.

B) Further, if the total of the Federal and State expenditures as listed on the SEFA
schedule exceeds $4,000,000, an additional fee of $1,000 per $1,000,000 (i.e 1/10%
of 1%) of the excess expenditures over $4,000,000 will be added. Also, $2,500 for
each major program will be added.

Signature:

Mayor

Date:

Signature:

Finance Officer

Date:




~ GiBsoN & COMPANY, P.A,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

March 2, 2023

To the Councit Members
Town of Lewisville

PO Box 547

Lewisville, NC 27023-0547

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the Town of Lewisville for the year
ended June 30, 2023. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements, of the Town of Lewisville as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023. Accounting standards generally
accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as
management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the Town of Lewisville's basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply
certain limited procedures to the Town of Lewisville's RS! in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses
to our inquiries, the basic financlal statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance an the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The
following RS is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited
procedures, but will not be audited:

1) Management's Discussion and Analysis.
2) Required Supplementary Information

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RS that accompanies the Town of
Lewisvilie’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the
financial statements as a whole:

1) Schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards,
2) Combining and individual non-major or fund financial statements,
3) Other schedules.

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit Is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented,
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness
of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on—

o Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

V4T Ol Ml Circle 3364760-8910
Winston-Satern, NC 27103 FAX 336/760-8913



2

e Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could
have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters will include a paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of
testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinioh on the
effectiveness of the entlty's internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states
that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.. Both
reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance,
and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue written
reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to the members of the Town Council of
the Town of Lewisville. We cannat provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances
may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter
paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any
reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to
express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements: therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the
areas to be tested. An audit also includes: evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable
to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the
determination of waste and abuse Is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform
specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable
assurance of detecting waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, an unavoidable risk exists that some material
misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned
and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards.
In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or .governmental
regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or on major programs. However,
we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial repotting, or
misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of
any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We
will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit: Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the
periad covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts,
and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain
other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial
institutions., We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may
bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conelusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations



3

from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal
award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities
required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures-~Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia! statements and to design the nature, timing,
and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain
controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness
of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance
with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program, However, our tests will be less in
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on Internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion, However, during the audit, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be
communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance,

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents are free of material misstatement,

we will perform tests of the Town of Lewisville's compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
and agreements, including grant agreements, However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an

opinion on overall sompliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report-on compliance issued pursuant
to Government Auditing Standards.

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to-obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards
applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the Town of Lewisville's major programs. For federal programs that are included in
the Compliance Supplement, our compliance and internal control procedures will relate to the compliance
requirements that the Compliance Supplement identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures
will be to express an opinion on the Town of Lewisville's compliance with requirements applicable to each of its
major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related
notes of the Town of Lewisville in conformity with U.S. generally ‘accepted accounting principles and the Uniform
Guidance based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under
Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services
are limited to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes services
previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or
take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for (1) designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls:
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,



4

whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal awards, and for evaluating and monitering
ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations;
(3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are administered in compliance with
compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly
reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and
application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial staterents, schedule
of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principlés; and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including federal statutes) and the
provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award agreements). Your responsibilities also include
identifying significant contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and
for the accuracy and completeness of that information.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, including Identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, (2)
access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed to
perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the
audit, and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to
us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us
during the cutrent engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and
in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2)
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect
on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include Informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud
or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from empioyees; former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for
taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions. of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is
management's responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified
including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit
findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan.

You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (ineluding notes
and noncash assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to [include the audited financial statements with
any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that includes our report thereon OR make the
audited financial statements readily available to intended users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
no later than the date the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is issued with our report thereon]. Your
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for
presentation ofthe schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you
believe the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in
the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any
significant assumiptions or interpretations underlying. the measurement or presentation of the schedule of
expehditures:of federal awards.

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been engaged
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include: our report on



5

the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the
supplementary information. You also agree to [include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the
supplementary information that includes our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily
avallable to users of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued
with our report thereon]. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that
(1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe
the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have
changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the
Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits,
or studies. You are also responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for
providing that information..

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financlal statements; schedule of expenditures
of federal awards; and related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to
acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements,
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have
accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual,
preferably from senior mahagement, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and
results of those services: and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request
and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that
summarizes our audit findings. It is management's responsibility to electronically submit the reporting package
(including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit
findings, auditor's reports; and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit
clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. The Data Collection Form
and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the ayditor's
reports of nine months after the end of the audit period.

We will provide copies of our reports to the Town of Lewisville; however, management is responsible for distribution
of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Gibson & Company, P.A. and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate
individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the North Carolina Local Government
Commission or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S, Government
Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight
responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit dosumentation will be
provided under the supervision of Gibson & Company, P.A. personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide
copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to
distribute the coples or information contained therein to others, including other govérnmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release
date or for any additional period requested by the North Carolina Local Government Commission. If we are aware



6

that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

We expect to begin our audit at your earliest convenience and to issue our reports no later than October 31, 2023.
R. Harold Gibson is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the
reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction,
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including
expenses, will not exceed $20,745 (this fee is for a GAAS or GAGAS audit; see addendum if Single Audit is required).
Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the
personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and
are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes
significantly overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services
for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination,
even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to
reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during
the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate
before we incur the additional costs. The cost included for the basic audit services are “not-to-exceed".

Our fees for other services, if any, (reconciliations, consultation, etc that are not related to or required by the basic
audit) tend to be on an “as needed" basis and are therefore not subject to a fixed fee. We propose that these
services, if any, be billed at our standard rate based on the actual time spent as needed or requested by you and
you staff. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level
of the personnel assigned to your engagement. These standard rates range from $64 to $256 which includes a 20%
discount that we offer to municipals. (Please note that this paragraph will not be imposed for “routine questions”
with a duration of 30 minutes or less.) This paragraph is intended to apply to “special projects” or requests by you
that would require significant time and involvement by us. Further we would advise you of any potential additional
fees before they were incurred.

This service engagement arrangement may be terminated by you or by Gibson & Company, P.A. upon written
notification.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Town of Lewisville and believe this letter accurately
summarizés the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us;
Very truly yours,

Gibson & Company, P.A.

Iy N—

R.-Harold Gibson
Managing Partner/Principal



RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Town of Lewisville

Signature:

Title:

Date:




v et ‘ ' tay v
SHEILA GAHAGAN, CPA
229 Penland Street
Clyde, NC 28721
Phone; 828-627-1040 Fax: 828-627-2329

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control

July 24, 2020

To: Gibson & Company, P,A, and the Peer Review Committee of the North Carolina
Assoctation of CPAs

[ have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Gibson
& Company, P.A, (the firm) in effect for the year ended March 31, 2020, My peer review was
conducted in accordanee with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews
established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed ina
System Review as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsunimary, The
suntmary also includés an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or
reported in conformity with applicable professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer
reviewer to determine a peer teview rating,

Firms Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying withit to
provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with
applicable professional standards in all material tespects, The firm s also responsible for
evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported in
conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weakngsses in its
system of quality control, if' any,

Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the
firm’s complianee therewith based on my review.



Required Selections and Considerations

Engagements selected for review included an engagement performed under Governmental
Auditing Standards, including a compliance audit under the Single Audit Act and an audit of an
employee benefit plan,

As part of iy peer review, I considered reviews by regulatoty entities communicated by the
firm, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of my procedures.

Opinion

In my opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Gibson
& Company, P.A, in effect for the year ended March 31, 2020, has been suitably designed and
complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assutance of performing and reporting in
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects, Firms can receive a
rating of pass, pass with deficiency (les) ot fail. Gibson & Company, P.A. has received a peer
review rating of pass.

BB, TP, LR

Sheila Gahagan, CPA



Attachment #15

STAFF REPORT

ITEM: RESOLUTION 2023-020

SUBJECT: SPRING 2023 STREET PAVING
PREPARED BY: JON HANNA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
DATE SUBMITTED: APRIL 12, 2023

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

On March 29, an Invitation for Bids (IFB) was issued for pavement repair and resurfacing on several Town streets.
The scope of work was developed by the Public Works Director with assistance from James Ayers, Stacy Tolbert,
NCDOT employees, and information derived from past Lewisville paving projects. The 2020 Pavement Condition
Survey was relied upon heavily, and staff performed multiple site visits to assess current field conditions. A base
scope of work was included in the bid package as well as an add-alternate list that identified possible additions should
the budget allow.

Sealed bids were opened on April 11 at Town Hall. Hanes Construction (Lexington), Hill’s Paving (Lewisville), and
Yadkin Valley Paving (Winston-Salem), all returned responsive bids. Yadkin Valley was the apparent low bidder
with $500,737.71 on the base scope of work. Available funds appropriated in the budget totaled $428,857. Yadkin
Valley has agreed to a trimmed scope that eliminates the Big Tree Drive segment ($75,673.20) and reduces the overall
package price to $425,064.51. The revised scope of work includes paving and/or repair work on Lake Ridge Drive,

Fox Ridge Circle, Willowmede Drive, Grinnell Court, and Grinnell Street. Please note that all bids were assessed
against the reduced scope of work, and Yadkin Valley remained the low bidder.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION:

Staff recommends this contract be approved by Council.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The proposed contract value of $425,064.51 represents expenditures that fall within the total budget of $428,857.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Resolution 2023-020 — Awarding paving contract to Yadkin Valley Paving, Inc.
Paving contract



RESOLUTION 2023-021 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
AWARDING PAVING CONTRACT FOR STREET PAVING

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville had a pavement condition survey completed on all town roads in August
2003 by US infrastructure of Carolina, Incorporated Consulting Engineers; and,

WHEREAS, an update to the 2020 has been completed; and,
WHEREAS, the survey determined which roads need paving attention ranking; and,
WHEREAS, the ranking determined the proposed streets needing immediate attention; and,

WHEREAS, using information from the ranking sheets, it has been determined that pacing and/or repairs
are needed for the following streets:

Lake Ridge Drive
Fox Ridge Circle
Willowmede Drive
Grinnell Court
Grinnell Street

WHEREAS, funds to complete the project are appropriated in the 2022-001 Budget Ordinance; and,
WHEREAS, Yadkin Valley Paving, Inc. has bid the best price for this project.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL the Town Manager is
authorized to award a contract for surface treatments as specified for each road noted in the attached
contract to Yadkin Valley Paving, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $425,064.51 for the above named

streets.

Approved and effective this the 13" day of April 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
P.O. Box 547 Lewisville, NC 27023
336-945-5558

AGREEMENT
Spring 2023 Street Paving

Contractor Name/Address/Phone/Email

Name - Yadkin Valley Paving, Inc.

Address — 121 Cloverleaf Drive, Winston-Salem, NC (27103)
Phone — 336-765-7900

Email — pattucker@yadkinvalleypaving.com

This agreement is entered into this 13th day of April, 2023 by and between Yadkin Valley
Paving, Inc. (the “Contractor”’) and the Town of Lewisville, a municipal corporation of the State
of North Carolina (the “Town”). The Town and Contractor may collectively be referred to as
“Parties” hereinafter.

The Town and the Contractor, for the consideration stated herein, agree as follows:

1. Scope of Work
The Contractor agrees to perform for the Town the following services: paving and/or repair
work on Lake Ridge Drive, Fox Ridge Circle, Willowmede Drive, Grinnell Court, and
Grinnell Street performed in accordance with the specifications, terms, and
conditions noted in the attached Invitation for Bids.

2. Specifications
The Contractor shall provide services in accordance with all governing agency regulations
and shall be held to the same standard and shall exercise the same degree of care, skill and
judgment in the performance of services for the Town as is ordinarily provided by a similar
professional under the same or similar circumstances at the time in North Carolina. Upon
request by the Town, the Contractor will provide plans and specifications prior to engaging
in any services under this Agreement. The Contractor hereby acknowledges that it is fully
licensed to perform the work contemplated by this Agreement. In the event of a conflict
between any provided plans and specifications and this Agreement, this Agreement shall
control.

3. Time of Commencement and Completion
Contractor shall commence the work required in this Agreement as soon as possible
and Contractor shall complete entire work no later than midnight on June 20, 2023. If
the Contractor has not satisfactorily commenced or completed the work within the times
specified, the Town may declare such delay a material breach of contract and may pursue
all available legal and equitable remedies. Any changes to the schedule(s) provided in this
Agreement must be agreed to in writing by the Town and the Contractor.



10.

Consideration and Payment of Services

In consideration of the above services, the Town will pay the Contractor the total sum of
$425,064.51 to be paid within 30 days from receipt of the invoice. The Town shall pay the
Contractor’s invoices at the times set forth in this Agreement unless a bona fide dispute
exists between the Town and the Contractor concerning the accuracy of said invoice, the
services covered thereby, or the performance of Contractor’s obligations under this
Agreement.

Indemnification

To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify,
and hold harmless the Town of Lewisville, its elected and appointed officials, employees,
agents, and volunteers against any and all claims, demands, suits or losses, including all
costs connected therewith, for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered
against or from the Town of Lewisville, its elected or appointed officials, employees, agents,
and volunteers by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property
damage, including loss of use thereof resulting from the negligence of the Contractor.

Applicability of Laws and Regulations

The Contractor shall adhere to all laws, ordinances, and regulations of the United States,
the State of North Carolina, the County of Forsyth, and the Town of Lewisville in the
performance of the services outlined in this Agreement and any attached specifications. This
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.

E-Verify Compliance

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North
Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify). The Contractor shall require all of the Contractor’s
subcontractors to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North
Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify).

Independent Contractor

The Contractor agrees that he/she is an independent contractor not under the control or
supervision of the Town and therefore not eligible for worker's compensation or other Town
employee benefits. The Contractor shall be wholly responsible for the methods, means, and
techniques of performance. Contractor does not make this agreement under any duress.

Anti-Human Trafficking

The Contractor warrants and agrees that no labor supplied by the Contractor or the
Contractor’s subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement shall be obtained by
means of deception, coercion, intimidation or force, or otherwise in violation of North
Carolina law, specifically Article 10A, Subchapter 3 of Chapter 14 of the North Carolina
General Statutes, Human Trafficking.

Quality and Workmanship

All work shall be performed to the satisfaction of the Town. The work shall not be considered
complete nor applicable payments rendered until the Town is satisfied with the services
provided.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Insurance

The Contractor shall maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement
and throughout any extension or renewal thereof the following types of insurance in at least
the limits specified below:

a. Workers’ Compensation Insurance at or above the Statutory Minimum.
b. Employer’s Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of $500,000.

c. General Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

d. Automobile Insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

The Contractor shall provide certificates of insurance showing proof of the above coverages.
The Contractor shall provide notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material change in
coverage to the Town of Lewisville within 10 days of their receipt of notice from the
insurance company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the requirement of the
Contractor to have sufficient insurance nor the requirement that the Town is named as an
additional insured, shall constitute waiver of the Town’s governmental immunity in any
respect, under North Carolina law.

Pre-Project Safety Review Meeting
When specified by the Town, the Contractor shall attend a pre-project safety review meeting
with the contacting Town representative prior to the start of work.

Default

In the event of substantial failure by the Contractor to perform in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement, the Town shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon seven (7)
days written notice in which event the Contractor shall have neither the obligation nor the
right to perform further services under this Agreement.

Termination for Convenience

The Town shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for the Town’s convenience upon
thirty (30) days written notice to Contractor. The Contractor shall terminate performance of
services on a schedule acceptable to the Town. In the event of termination for convenience,
the Town shall pay the Contractor for all services satisfactorily performed.

Delay Beyond the Control of the Parties

Neither Contractor nor Town shall be in default of the provisions of this Agreement for
delays in performance due to forces beyond the control the Parties. “Forces Beyond the
Control of the Parties” shall mean, but is not limited to, delay caused by fire, acts of God,
flood, earthquakes, storms, lightning, epidemic, war, riot, strike, pandemic, civil
disobedience, and/or governmental order or regulation.

Nonwaiver for Breach

No breach or non-performance of any term of this Agreement shall be deemed to be waived
by either party unless said breach or non-performance is waived in writing and signed by the
Parties. No waiver of any breach or non-performance under this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or non-performance and for any



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

such breach or non-performance each party shall be relegated to such remedies as
provided by law.

Construction

Should any portion of this Agreement require judicial interpretation, it is agreed that the
Court or Tribunal construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the terms hereof
shall be more strictly construed against any one party by reason of the rule of construction
that a document is to be more strictly construed against the party who prepared the
documents.

No Representations

The Parties hereby warrant that no representations about the nature or extent of any claims,
demands, damages, or rights that they have, or may have, against one another have been
made to them, or to anyone acting on their behalf, to induce them to execute this
Agreement, and they rely on no such representations, that they have fully read and
understand this Agreement before signing their names, and that they act voluntarily and with
full advice of counsel.

Severability

In the event for any reason that any provision or portion of this Agreement shall be found to
be void or invalid, then such provision or portion shall be deemed to be severable from the
remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement, and it shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions, which portions shall be given full effect as if the void or invalid provision
or portion had not been included herein.

Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

Modification

This Agreement contains the full understanding of the Parties. Any modifications or
addendums to this Agreement must be in writing and executed with the same formality as
this Agreement.

Binding Effect
The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties’ heirs, successors, and
assigns.

Assignment

The Contractor shall not assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest in (including,
but without limitation, monies that may become due or monies that are due) this Agreement
without the written consent of the Town. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent
the Contractor from employing such independent consultants, associates, and sub-
contractors as it may deem appropriate to assist the Contractor in the performance of
services rendered.



24.

25.

26.

Non-Appropriation

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Agreement, the Parties agree that payments
due hereunder from the Town are from appropriations and monies from the Town Council
and any other governmental entities. In the event sufficient appropriations or monies are not
made available to the Town to pay the terms of this Agreement for any fiscal year, this
Agreement shall terminate immediately without further obligation of the Town.

Electronic Sighature

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform
Electronic Transactions Act) this Agreement and all documents related hereto containing an
electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same manner as are hard copy
documents executed by hand signature. The Parties hereby consent to use electronic or
digitized signatures and intend to be bound by the Agreement and any related documents. If
electronic signatures are used the Agreement shall be delivered in an electronic record
capable of retention by the recipient at the time of receipt.

Notice

A letter properly addressed and sent by mail, certified mail, or registered mail to any party at
the addresses provided below shall constitute sufficient notice whenever written notice is
required for any purpose of this agreement. Notice will be considered sent either when
received at the appropriate address or deposited in the United States mail.

Town of Lewisville
P.O. Box 547
Lewisville, NC 27023
336-945-5558

James Ayers
Town Manager

Date

Name:
Address: 121 Cloverleaf Drive, Winston-Salem, NC (27103)

Signature

Date



This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government
Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Pam Orrell, Finance Officer

Attachments: Invitation for Bids



Town of Lewisville
Invitation for Bids
Spring 2023 Street Paving
March 29, 2023

The Town of Lewisville is accepting bids for 2023 street repair and paving. Please
review the following pages and contact Public Works with questions or comments.
Specifications vary according to street, depending on several factors such as age and
original construction, so please be careful to read and consider each description.

Material specifications and contract stipulations are provided. Please bid based on
supplied information. If there are recommended changes that would result in better
product quality or more efficient work flow, suggestions will be considered upon
negotiation of final contract.

All areas to be patched will be clearly marked in white paint. If there are any
questions whatsoever regarding designation or differentiation between areas to be
patched, overlaid, etc., please contact Public Works immediately. Information for
such inquiries is provided below.

The “Add / Alternate” section includes tasks that are in the vicinity of the base work
and may be added to the scope of work based on budget capacity. Please bid these
items separately, but as potential additions to the base work you would have already
mobilized to do in each area. Add alternate work will not be awarded in the absence
of base list work already in the immediate area.

Instructions, Notifications and Information:

No Gratuities — Contractors will not offer any gratuities, favors, or anything of
monetary value to any official or employee of the Town for the purpose of influencing
this Invitation for Bids (IFB). Any attempt by a Contractor to influence the selection
process by any means, other than disclosure of qualifications and credentials through
this solicitation, will be grounds for exclusion from the selection process.

All Information True — By submitting a bid, Contractors represent and warrant to the
Town that all information provided in the bid submitted shall be true, correct and
complete. Contractors who provide false, misleading or incomplete information,
whether intentional or not, in any of the documents presented to the Town for
consideration in the selection process may be excluded.



Inquiries — Do not contact elected officials, appointed officials, or Town staff to make
inquiries about the progress of the selection process. Contractors will be contacted
when it is appropriate to do so. Process inquiries may be directed to Public Works
Director Jon Hanna via e-mail at publicworks@lewisvillenc.net or via phone at
336/945-1020.

Cost of Bids — The Town will not be responsible for the costs incurred by anyone in
the submittal of bids.

Contract Negotiations — This IFB is not to be construed as a contract or as a
commitment of any kind. If this IFB results in a contract offer by the Town, the
specific scope of work, associated fees, and other contractual matters will be
determined during contract negotiations,

Contract Form — The contract form for this project will be the Town’s standard
Agreement (attached hereto).

No Obligation — The Town reserves the right to: (1) evaluate the bids submitted; (2)
waive any irregularities therein; (3) require interviews or waive interviews of any
kind; (4) accept any submittal or portion of submittal; (5) reject any or all Contractors
submitting bids, should it be deemed in the Town’s best interest; or (6) cancel or re-
issue the entire 1FB.

Insurance — The Contractor shall have the appropriate insurance coverage types and
limits as may be approved by the Town in its sole discretion, and written by an insurer
authorized to transact insurance in the State of North Carolina. The Town shall be
listed as Certificate Holder and, where required by the Town, as additional named
insured. The Contractor shall maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of
the Agreement and throughout any extension or renewal thereof the following types of
insurance in at least the limits specified below:

a. Workers’ Compensation Insurance at or above the Statutory Minimum.

b. Employer’s Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

¢. General Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

d. Automobile Insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

The Contractor shall provide certificates of insurance showing proof of the above

coverages. The Contractor shall provide notice of cancellation, non-renewal or
material change in coverage to the Town of Lewisville within 10 days of their receipt



of notice from the insurance company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the
requirement of the Contractor to have sufficient insurance nor the requirement that the
Town is named as an additional insured, shall constitute waiver of the Town’s
governmental immunity in any respect, under North Carolina law.

Submittal Instructions:

The Town will receive sealed bids to this IFB at the address set forth below until 4:00
p.m. on April 11, 2023. Bids should be labeled “Spring 2023 Street Paving” on the
front of the envelope. Reponses must be directed to the following point of contact:

Mailing Address: Physical Address:
Town of Lewisville Town of Lewisville
Attn: Jon Hanna Attn: Jon Hanna

P.O. Box 547 6510 Shallowford Rd.
Lewisville, NC 27023 Lewisville, NC 27023

All questions or requests for clarification should be directed only to the Public Works
Director Jon Hanna, via phone (336/945-1020), e-mail
(publicworks@lewisvillenc.net), or regular mail (P.O. Box 547, Lewisville, NC
27023). Questions must be submitted by 4:00 p.m. on April 4, 2023. Responses to
questions may result in the issuance of addenda to the IFB, and any addenda will be
posted no later than April 6, 2023 at www.lewisvillenc.net. It is the responsibility of
all Contractors to check the website for addenda prior to submission. No questions
will be answered after the date specified.

The Invitation to Bid is available on the Town’s website at:

www.lewisvillenc.net.

Included Attachment: Town of Lewisville Standard Contract Agreement



Specifications:

Unless otherwise noted, Full Depth Patch (FDP) indicates 2.5” of 1190.c Binder and 1.5”
(finished) of $9.5B Surface Course Asphalt

Where FDP and overlay are prescribed on the same site, the overlay course serves as the
surface course for the full depth repair.

The Contractor will submit an approved mix design for 9.5B hot mix asphalt.
Square valve boxes will be placed parallel to the street being paved.

Bricks placed below manhole rings will not be staggered. A complete circle of brick will
be placed with mortar joints 3/8-inch in width, All debris from structure adjustment will
be cleaned up the same day.

All structures will be set to a grade of 1/8-inch in 10-feet.
All concrete used to secure structures will be 3,000 psi or greater.

A minimum of a 12-inch vertical cut will be made around all structures that are to be
adjusted.

Prior to paving, the Contractor will be responsible for cleaning all excess stone, dirt,
leaves, and grass from the street.

All existing asphalt on structures to be adjusted will be removed by the Contractor before
the structure is set to grade.

After the street is paved the Contractor will clean excess asphalt and stone from the street
and sidewalk area or shoulder area. Grade and seed shoulders as necessary to restore site
to prior condition. Clean up will be completed no later than one week after the street is
resurfaced. :

Use a rubber tire roller when applying seal or when resurfacing between lead roller and
finish roller.

Begin resurfacing a street within one week of cold milling.

The Contractor will be responsible for location of and protection of private company
structures such as gas, telephone and power.

Contractor is to include pricing for adjusting water valve boxes and other structures as
needed.

The riser provider will measure each structure to ensure that all risers will be the correct
height, If Contractor does not match the riser when the street is resurfaced, the Contractor
will be responsible for adjusting the structure to match the new road surface.

The Town reserves the right to request testing at any time to ensure adherence to
standards and specifications.



Entire Street Treatments —

Lake Ridge Drive — 1955 length x 16 width
- FDP where indicated with 3” binder, overlay entire street with 1.5” (FDP areas will be 4.5”

finished)
- Deliver sufficient millings/gravel to lower end to create protective ramp along eroded edge

Notes/Calculations:

Total price for this segment -

Fox Ridge Circle - 1967 length x 22’ width

- FDP where indicated, mill 1.5” at curb back to 0” at 4, overlay entire street with 1.5”
- Include Pennington Ridge Gt., 240’ plus cul-de-sac

- Include FDP indicated on Shady Brook Ln,

Notes/Calculations:

Total price for this segment —

Willowmede Drive - 1574’ length x 20’ width
- EDP where indicated, overlay entire street with 1.5”
- Include marked extensions onto Fllison Creek at intersection

Notes/Calculations:

Total price for this segment —



Sectional Street Treatmenis -

Big Tree Drive ~

- West cul-de-sac to Bebb Willow intersection - FDP where indicated, mill 1.5” and overlay 1.5”
where indicated in south travel lane

- Saskatoon intersection — ¥DP where indicated, match grade to surrounding sound pavement

- 787 to Ghockecherry Ln — FDP where indicated, mill 1.5” and overlay with 2” surface course

- East side of Chockecherry intersection — FDP where indicated

Notes/Calculations:

Total price for this segment —

Grinnell Court -

- FDP - full width at 1107 where marked

- FDP - Chockecherry intersection where marked
- FDP - Grinnell Street intersection where marked

Notes/Calculations:

Total price for this segment —

Grinnell Street -

- East cul-de-sac and intersection with Sequoia - FDP where indicated

- Bebb Willow to Sequoia - FDP where indicated, mill 1.5” and overlay 2 surface course
- Chockecherry Ln at intersection — FDP where indicated

Notes/Calculations:

Total price for this segment —



Add { Alternate —~ Fox Ridge / Sequoia Area

Ridge Gate Drive -
- Between Arbor Run and Fairhaven, full width FDP in two marked locations

Notes/Calculations:

Total add for this segment —

Big Tree Court -
- Mill 1.5” and overlay 1.5%, to include cul-de-sac

Notes/Calculations:

Total add for this segment —

Chockecherry Court -
- Mill 1.5” and overlay 1.5” to include cul-de-sac

Notes/Calculations:

Total add for this segment -



Spring 2023 Asphalt Worksheet

Entire street -

Lake Ridge Drive - FDP with 3" binder where marked, 1.5" overlay on entirety
1955' length x 16' width

Fox Ridge Circle - FDP where marked, mill 1.5" at curb back to 0" at 4'
overlay 1.5" on entirety

1967’ length x 22' width

include Pennington Ridge Ct - 240' x 22' plus cul-de-sac

include FDP where marked on Shady Brook Ln

Willowmede - FDP where marked, overlay 1.5" on entirety
1574' length x 20' width
include marked extensions onto Ellison Creek, to the extent of radius

Sectional -
Big Tree Drive 7
West cul-de-sac to Bebb Willow - FDP at int, mill and overlay 1.5" where marked
in south lane
Saskatoon - FDP where marked
787 to Chockecherry - FDP where marked, mill 1.5" and overlay 2"
(288'x 20")
Chockecherry to Grinnell Court - FDP at intersection where marked
Grinnell Court
FDP - 1107 fult width where marked
FDP - Chockecherry intersection where marked
FDP - Grinnell St intersection where marked
Grinnell Street
east cul-de-sac and intersection with Sequoia - FDP where marked
Bebb Willow to Sequoia - FDP where marked, mill 1.5" and overlay 2"
- to include intersection at Chockecherry Ln where marked
Add/Alternate -
Chockecherry Ct
mill 1.5" and overlay 1.5"
Big Tree Ct -
mill 1.5 " and overlay 1.5"
Ridge Gate

FDP - full width in 2 marked areas,

between Arbor Run Dr and Fairhaven Rd
Shady Brook Ln

mill 1.5" and overlay 1.5"



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
P.O. Box 547 Lewisville, NC 27023
336-945-5558
AGREEMENT

Brief Description of Work to be Performed

Contractor Name/Address/Phone/Email

Name

Address
Phone Number
Email

This agreement is entered into this ____ day of , 20___ by and between

(the “Contractor”) and the Town of Lewisville, a municipal corporation

of the State of North Carolina, (the “Town”). The Town and Contractor may collectively be
referred to as “Parties” hereinafter.

The Town and the Contractor, for the consideration stated herein, agree as follows:

Scope of Work
The Contractor agrees to perform for the Town the following services:

2. Specifications

The Contractor shall provide services in accordance with all governing agency regulations
and shall be held to the same standard and shall exercise the same degree of care, skill and
judgment in the performance of services for the Town as is ordinarily provided by a similar
professional under the same or similar circumstances at the time in North Carolina. Upon
request by the Town, the Contractor will provide plans and specifications prior to engaging
in any services under this Agreement. The Contractor hereby acknowledges that it is fully
licensed to perform the work contemplated by this Agreement. In the event of a conflict
between any provided plans and specifications and this Agreement, this Agreement shall
control.

Time of Commencement and Completion

Contractor shall commence the work required in this Agreement as soon as possible
and Contractor shall complete entire work no later than . If the
Contractor has not satisfactorily commenced or completed the work within the times
specified, the Town may declare such delay a material breach of contract and may pursue
all available legal and equitable remedies. Any changes to the schedule(s) provided in this
Agreement must be agreed to in writing by the Town and the Contractor.




10.

Consideration and Payment of Services

In consideration of the above services, the Town will pay the Contractor the total sum of
to be paid within 30 days from receipt of the invoice. The Town shall pay the

Contractor's invoices at the times set forth in this Agreement unless a bona fide dispute

exists between the Town and the Contractor concerning the accuracy of said invoice, the

services covered thereby, or the performance of Contractor's obligations under this

Agreement.

Indemnification

To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify,
and hold harmless the Town of Lewisville, its elected and appointed officials, employees,
agents, and volunteers against any and all claims, demands, suits or losses, including all
costs connected therewith, for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered
against or from the Town of Lewisville, its elected or appointed officials, employees, agents,
and volunteers by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property
damage, including loss of use thereof resulting from the negligence of the Contractor.

Applicability of Laws and Regulations

The Contractor shall adhere to all laws, ordinances, and regulations of the United States,
the State of North Carolina, the County of Forsyth, and the Town of Lewisville in the
performance of the services outlined in this Agreement and any attached specifications. This
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.

E-Verify Compliance

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North
Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify). The Contractor shall require all of the Contractor's
subcontractors to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North
Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify).

Independent Contractor

The Contractor agrees that he/she is an independent contractor not under the control or
supervision of the Town and therefore not eligible for worker's compensation or other Town
employee benefits. The Contractor shall be wholly responsible for the methods, means, and
techniques of performance. Contractor does not make this agreement under any duress.

Anti-Human Trafficking

The Contractor warrants and agrees that no labor supplied by the Contractor or the
Contractor's subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement shall be obtained by
means of deception, coercion, intimidation or force, or otherwise in violation of North
Carolina law, specifically Article 10A, Subchapter 3 of Chapter 14 of the North Carolina
General Statutes, Human Trafficking.

Quality and Workmanship

All work shall be performed to the satisfaction of the Town. The work shall not be considered
complete nar applicable payments rendered until the Town is satisfied with the services
provided.



14

12.

13.

14.

15,

16.

Insurance

The Contractor shall maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement
and throughout any extension or renewal thereof the following types of insurance in at least
the limits specified below:

a. Workers’ Compensation Insurance at or above the Statutory Minimum.
b. Employer’s Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of
c. General Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of
d. Automobile Insurance in the minimum amount of

The Contractor shall provide certificates of insurance showing proof of the above coverages.
The Contractor shall provide notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material change in
coverage to the Town of Lewisville within 10 days of their receipt of notice from the
insurance company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the requirement of the
Contractor to have sufficient insurance nor the requirement that the Town is named as an
additional insured, shall constitute waiver of the Town’s governmental immunity in any
respect, under North Carolina law.

Pre-Project Safety Review Meeting
When specified by the Town, the Contractor shall attend a pre-project safety review meeting
with the contacting Town representative prior to the start of work.

Default

In the event of substantial failure by the Contractor to perform in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement, the Town shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon seven (7)
days written notice in which event the Contractor shall have neither the obligation nor the
right to perform further services under this Agreement.

Termination for Convenience

The Town shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for the Town’s convenience upon
thirty (30) days written notice to Contractor. The Contractor shall terminate performance of
services on a schedule acceptable to the Town. In the event of termination for convenience,
the Town shall pay the Contractor for all services satisfactorily performed.

Delay Beyond the Control of the Parties

Neither Contractor nor Town shall be in default of the provisions of this Agreement for
delays in performance due to forces beyond the control the Parties. “Forces Beyond the
Control of the Parties” shall mean, but is not limited to, delay caused by fire, acts of God,
flood, earthquakes, storms, lightning, epidemic, war, riot, strike, pandemic, civil
disobedience, and/or governmental order or regulation.

Nonwaiver for Breach

No breach or non-performance of any term of this Agreement shall be deemed to be waived
by either party unless said breach or non-performance is waived in writing and signed by the
Parties. No waiver of any breach or non-performance under this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or non-performance and for any



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

such breach or non-performance each party shall be relegated to such remedies as
provided by law.

Construction

Should any portion of this Agreement require judicial interpretation, it is agreed that the
Court or Tribunal construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the terms hereof
shall be more strictly construed against any one party by reason of the rule of construction
that a document is to be more strictly construed against the party who prepared the
documents.

No Representations

The Parties hereby warrant that no representations about the nature or extent of any claims,
demands, damages, or rights that they have, or may have, against one another have been
made to them, or to anyone acting on their behalf, fo induce them to execute this
Agreement, and they rely on no such representations, that they have fully read and
understand this Agreement before signing their names, and that they act voluntarily and with
full advice of counsel.

Severability

In the event for any reason that any provision or portion of this Agreement shall be found to
be void or invalid, then such provision or portion shall be deemed to be severable from the
remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement, and it shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions, which portions shall be given full effect as if the void or invalid provision
or portion had not been included herein.

Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

Modification

This Agreement contains the full understanding of the Parties. Any modifications or
addendums to this Agreement must be in writing and executed with the same formality as
this Agreement.

Binding Effect
The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties’ heirs, successors, and
assigns.

Assignment

The Contractor shall not assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest in (including,
but without limitation, monies that may become due or monies that are due) this Agreement
without the written consent of the Town. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent
the Contractor from employing such independent consultants, associates, and sub-
contractors as it may deem appropriate to assist the Contractor in the performance of
services rendered.



24.

25.

26.

Non-Appropriation

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Agreement, the Parties agree that payments
due hereunder from the Town are from appropriations and monies from the Town Council
and any other governmental entities. In the event sufficient appropriations or monies are not
made available to the Town to pay the terms of this Agreement for any fiscal year, this
Agreement shall terminate immediately without further obligation of the Town.

Electronic Signature

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform
Electronic Transactions Act) this Agreement and all documents related hereto containing an
electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same manner as are hard copy
documents executed by hand signature. The Parties hereby consent to use electronic or
digitized signatures and intend to be bound by the Agreement and any related documents. If
electronic signatures are used the Agreement shall be delivered in an electronic record
capable of retention by the recipient at the time of receipt.

Notice

A letter properly addressed and sent by mail, certified mail, or registered mail to any party at
the addresses provided below shall constitute sufficient notice whenever written notice is
required for any purpose of this agreement. Notice will be considered sent either when
received at the appropriate address or deposited in the United States mail.

Town of Lewisville
P.O. Box 547
Lewisville, NC 27023
336-945-5558

James Ayers
Town Manager

Date

Contractor Name
Address

Signature

Date



This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government
Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Pam Orrell, Finance Director



	04-13-2023 agenda
	01 - 2023-018 - Res - Financials
	02 - 02-09-2023 TC Meeting Minutes
	03 - 03-02-2023 TC Briefing Minutes
	04 - 03-09-2023 TC Meeting Minutes
	05 - FLOW
	06 - Higgins
	07 - Walker
	08 - 2023-001 Proclamation - Volunteer Appreciation Week - April 2023
	09 - 2023-002 Proclamation - Historic Preservation Month
	10 - 2023-004 - LBC - Branower
	11 - 2023-005 ECSC - Branower
	12 - 2023-014 - Ord - Capital Project Ordinance Roundabout L-V and Robinhood-Amendment
	Staff Report-Amendment to Roundabout Project
	2023-014 - Ord - Capital Project Ordinance Roundabout L-V and Robinhood-Amendment 

	13 - 2023-015 - Ord Budget Amend - Robinhood Roundabout
	14  2023-019 - Res - 2022-2023 Audit Contract
	Staff Report-Gibsib  Company 2022-2023 Audit
	15  2023-019 - Res - 2022-2023 Audit Contract
	15  2023-019 - Res - 2022-2023 Audit Contract
	Gibson  Company Contract 2022-2023


	15 - 2023-020 - Res. Paving Contract
	4-12-23 Paving Staff Report - Updated
	15 - 2023-020 - Res. Paving Contract
	Contract - Spring 2023 Street Paving
	spring-2023-paving-bid-packet




